
 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2017 
CLOSED SESSION 5:00 P.M.  
REGULAR SESSION 6:00 P.M. 

 COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM 
177 First St. W., Sonoma, CA 

In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, if you require 
special accommodations to participate in a District meeting, please 
contact District Clerk Stacey Finn at (707) 935.5004 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

AGENDA ITEM   

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health 
of everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER Hirsch  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION Hirsch  

3.    CLOSED SESSION 
 Government Code Section 54956.8 

Conference with Real Property Negotiators regarding the 
South Lot property. 

Hirsch Action 

4.   REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION Hirsch Inform 

5.   PUBLIC COMMENT Hirsch Inform 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  
A. Board Minutes 08.03.17 
B. Quality Committee Minutes 08.23.17 
C. Governance Committee Minutes 08.22.17 
D. Executed Policies and Procedures 
E. Medical Staff Credentialing Report                      Pages 3-30

Hirsch Action 

7.    SOUTH LOT DISCUSSION Hirsch Inform/Action

8.  RESOLUTION No. 335 ADOPTION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF DESIGN BUILD 
CONSTRUCTION PROCESS FOR THE OUTPATIENT 
DIAGNOSTIC CENTER                                         Pages 31-40

Coss/Peluso Inform/Action

9.    BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT, MARKETING & 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS PRESENTATION 

                                                                                           Pages 41-75 

Donaldson/Kenney/
Kruse De La Rosa 

Inform 

10.  RESOLUTION No. 336 SETTING THE GO BOND 
TAX  RATE 2017-2018 

                                                                                    Pages 76-80

Jensen Inform/Action

11. RESOLUTION No. 337 ISSUANCE OF BONDS TO 
REFUND THE OUTSTANDING GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS                                    Pages 81-85 

Jensen Inform/Action



 

12.  RESOLUTION No. 338 AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF A TAX & REVENUE ANTICIPATION 
NOTE                                                              Pages 86-94 

Jensen Inform/Action

13. FINANCIAL REPORT MONTH ENDING JULY 30,  
2017                                                                       Pages 95-108 

Jensen Inform 

14. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT SEPTEMBER 2017 
                                                                               Pages 109-112 

Mather Inform 

15. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 Governance Committee 

Travel & Reimbursement Policy Changes 
SVH Affiliation Agreements 

 CEO Objectives for FY2018                     Pages 113-123 

 
 
Hohorst 
Hohorst 
Hohorst/Rymer 

Inform/Action

16. BOARD COMMENTS 
 SVH Oppose Letters for AB1250             Pages 124-128 

Board Members Inform 

17. ADJOURN Hirsch  

 



 

 
6. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 
 

3



 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

MINUTES 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 3, 2017 
CLOSED SESSION 5:00 P.M. 

REGULAR SESSION 6:00 P.M. 
 

COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM 
175 First Street West Sonoma CA 

 RECOMMENDATION 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the 
health of everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m.  

Hirsch  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION Hirsch  

No comment   

3. CLOSED SESSION 
  

Hirsch  

4.  REPORT ON CLOSED SESSON   Inform 

Ms. Hirsch reported that the closed session was a discussion 
regarding the South Lot and the additional information gathered 
from the developers. More information and discussion will 
follow during the South Lot agenda item.  
 

  

5. PUBLIC COMMENT Hirsch  

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  Hirsch Inform/Action 

  MOTION: by 
Rymer 2nd by 
Nevins to approve 
with stated change.  
All in favor 

7. FINANCE COMMITTEE CANDIATE KEITH 
HUGHES 

Nevins Action 

The recommendation from the finance committee is to appoint 
Mr. Hughes to the committee. Ms. Nevins gave a brief overview 
of Mr. Hughes qualifications.  

 MOTION: by 
Nevins 2nd by 
Hohorst to approve 
Mr. Hughes 
appointment to the 
Finance 
Committee.  All in 
favor 
 

4



 

8. MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION Glassner Inform 

Mr. Glassner CEO of Veritas, Executive Compensation 
Consultant, LLC, gave a report of his review of the Sonoma 
Valley Hospital Executive salaries.  
His data showed that in comparison to peer group data, base 
salary for the CEO appears to be competitive, just above median 
or within the third quartile. However, both the CEO and other 
executives appear to be below the range of competitive practices 
relative to published survey data. He said overall, the SVH total 
compensation program has produced many desired results, 
though compensation levels may not have kept up with the 
Organization’s recent growth. In response to this, Veritas 
recommends that SVH continue to structure the compensation 
program to promote a pay-for-performance environment and 
continue to compensate jobs according to job content, individual 
seasoning and experience, and individual performance, with 
strong consideration of external market levels. 
Mr. Boerum requested a clarification for the record regarding 
the CRO position. He confirmed with Ms. Mather that the only 
cost to the hospital incurs is her salary. The Hospital does not 
pay for her travel or expenses. 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mr. Douglas Ghiselin requested that this full report be published 
on the hospital website.  

  

9. SOUTH LOT DISCUSSION Hirsch Inform/Action 

Ms. Hirsch reports that the proposals and additional information 
was reviewed. 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 Kimberly Blattner restated her husbands, Simon Blattner, 
interest in purchasing the south lot for development of a 
workforce housing via a philanthropic “Blended Value” project.  
She reviewed their current blended value project in San 
Francisco. 
Josette Brose Eichar– Ms. Eichar presented her thoughts on the 
Boards sensitivity to public perception with their decision on the 
South Lot. She expressed that selling to a developer who will 
create workforce housing will help quiet the critics.   
Norman Gilroy- Mr. Gilroy stated that the fourth proposal was 
to do it ourselves. This was an opportunity for the community to 
be involved. He backs Mr. Blattner’s proposal and the previous 
speaker’s sentiment because of the benefit to the community as a 
whole. 
 Mr. Boerum made a motion to accept the DeNova homes 
proposal. Mr. Rymer said that given the proposals that we saw, 
it is better that we go forward with two and discuss those.  
Mr. Boerum accepts the Mr. Rymer amendment of the motion to 
discuss two proposals 
 

 MOTION: by 
Boerum, 2nd Rymer 
to move forward 
with negotiations 
with DeNova 
Homes and 
Caymus Corp. All 
in favor.   
Add hoc committee 
comprised of 
hospital staff, legal 
counsel, Board 
members Mr. 
Rymer and Ms. 
Nevins  
MOTION: by 
Boerum 2nd by 
Hirsch. All in favor 

5



 

10. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT AUGUST 
 

Mather Inform 

 Ms. Mather reported that we met budget for the second year in a 
row, a very big accomplishment. EHR is on its way, remote 
hosting is up and now we are doing the upgrades. The company 
that owns the EHR has been bought, as of today, by All Scripts. 
We are looking into this further, but still moving forward with 
the project. 
New breast surgeon will be coming on board this fall. In 
addition to that is we are opening a women’s service line. We 
are also looking at additional technology to support the breast 
surgeon and discussion support with the Foundation.  
We had 2700 people attend hospital events last year. Exceeding 
the goal by 30 percent. 
Mammography project is underway with projected completion 
in 90 days.  
Ms. Mather reviewed the current patient satisfaction. We are 
doing better in the last couple of months, meeting higher goals. 
She reported the overall quality measures. These will be revised 
for next month’s presentation.  
Rate my hospital has been started. It is a texting service in our 
out pt services. The results have been overall positive. We are 
calling the lower rating people for follow up.   
 

  

11. FINANCIAL REPORT MONTH END JUNE 30, 2017 Jensen Inform 

Mr. Jensen reported the month end financial report for June 30, 
2017.  
After accounting for all other activity; the June net income was 
$689,970 vs. the budgeted net loss of $39,977 with a monthly 
EBIDA of 8.5% vs a budgeted 2.8%. The fiscal year-end total 
net income is $1,269,598 favorable to budget with a year-end 
EBIDA of 3.6% vs. the budgeted 3.3%. Gross patient revenue 
for June was $23,651,284, $2,291,683 better than expected. In 
patient gross revenue was over budget by $545,700. Outpatient 
revenue was over budget by $938,106. Deductions from revenue 
were unfavorable to budget expectations by $1,760,204. Without 
the additional government funding, the revenue deductions 
would be unfavorable to budget by $2,240,510.  
Total operating revenue was favorable to budget by $498,275. 
Operating expenses of $5,249,718 were unfavorable to budget 
by $153,339.  
The total net income for June after all activity was $689,970 vs a 
budgeted net loss of $39,977. The cash collection goal for June 
was $4,056,583 and the Hospital collected $3,916,143. The 
year-to-date cash goal is $43,285,626 and the Hospital has 
collected $45,670,485. Days of cash on hand as of June 30, 2017 
were 19.8 days. Accounts Receivable increased from May, from 

  

6



 

44.5 days to 45.3 days in June. Accounts Payable increased by 
$75,208 from May and Accounts Payable days are at 45.8. 
Mr. Jensen also reported on the fiscal year-end financial data. 
After accounting for all activity, the Fiscal Year ended with a 
net income of $988,081 vs. a budgeted net loss of ($281,517).  
EBIDA ended at $2,054,261 or 3.6% vs. budgeted at 
$1,782,779, or 3.3%. Accounts Payable at year end was 
$3,525,679 vs. $3,790,283 at the end of last fiscal year.  Cash at 
June 30, 2017 was $3,166,281 vs. $1,384,178 at June 30, 2016. 
The gross patient revenue was over budget by $12,403,758 with 
the inpatient gross revenue over budget by $7,235,569 and the 
ER gross revenue over budget by $12,802,192.  The fiscal year-
end June 30, 2017 revenue deductions were unfavorable to 
budget by ($10,697,439) which is primarily due to the 
significant positive variance in IP and ER gross revenue. 
Expenses were over budget by ($1,333,551). Year-end interest 
expense were over budgeted expectations ($122,917) due to the 
unbudgeted interest expense related to the south lot loan and the 
fluoroscopy project. 

12. BOARD REPORTS Board 
Members 

Inform 

Ms. Hirsch reported out about the Hospital Leadership Summit 
that several of the Board members attended.  
Mr. Boerum reported that the JPA group met to start work on the 
conduit issuer.  
 

  

13.  BOARD COMMENTS 
  

Hirsch/Board 
Members 

 

Ms. Hirsch reported that it is time to form the committee to 
handle Ms. Mathers’ annual performance evaluation.   
 
Ms. Hirsch also reported to the Board that is time to schedule the 
annual Board Retreat.  
 

 MOTION: by 
Hirsch to nominate 
Mr. Rymer and Mr. 
Hohorst to do the 
performance 
review. 2nd by 
Boerum. All in 
favor. 

14. ADJOURN 7:40pm   

 

7



 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MINUTES 

TUESDAY, August 22, 2017 
8:30AM 

 
 ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM 

347 ANDRIEUX STREET, SONOMA, CA 95476 
 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special 
accommodations to participate in a District meeting, please contact the District 
Clerk, Stacy Finn at sfinn@svh.com or (707) 935.5004  at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting. 

  

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 
everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Hohorst  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the 
agenda. It is recommended you keep your comments to three minutes or less. 
Under State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted 
upon by the Committee at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public 
will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up.  

Hohorst  

No public comment   

3.    REVIEW OF ORIENTATION MANUAL Hohorst Inform 

A draft of Sonoma Valley District Affiliations was discussed and 
approved for inclusion in the Orientation Reference Guide. It will be 
posted on the SVH web site. This will be an information item for the 
9/7/17 Board agenda.  

  

4. REVIEW OF TRAVEL & REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 
 

Hohorst Inform 

A draft of a revision of the Travel and Reimbursement Policy that 
changes the maximum allowance for meals for Board members 
traveling out of town for 24 hours or more was discussed and 
approved with a recommendation to the Board for approval. 

  

5. ADJOURN 
 

Hohorst  

Meeting adjourned at 0845am.    

 

8



 

+ 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

QUALITY COMMITTEE 
July 26, 2017, 5:00 PM 

MINUTES 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
Members Present Members Present cont. Excused Public/Staff 
Michael Mainardi, MD 
Kelsey Woodward 
Joshua Rymer 
Ingrid Sheets 
Carol Snyder 
Cathy Webber 

 Susan Idell 
Jane Hirsch 
Howard Eisenstark, MD 
Brian Sebastian MD 
 

Leslie Lovejoy 
Mark Kobe 
Emma Snyder 

 
AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Rymer  

 Meeting called to order at 4:59p.m.  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT Rymer  

 None  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR Rymer Action 

 QC Minutes, 05.24.17  MOTION: by Minardi  to approve, 
2nd by Sheets All in favor 

4. POLICY & PROCEDURES Lovejoy Action 

   MOTION: by Minardi to approve, 
2nd by Snyder. All in favor. 

5.   ANCILLARY SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT Kuwahara Inform 

 Ms. Kuwahara presented the Ancillary Services 
Annual Report. She presented an overview of who 
and what the ancillary services are.  
Staff satisfaction scores – roll up report is 4.28 out 
of 5. 86% with 93% participation. Direct reports 4.5 
out of 5. 90% engagement with 100% participation.  
Ms. Kuwahara gave an overview on the community 
benefit that ancillary services participates in. Things 
such as: back to school fair, balance classes, 
binational health fair, gentle yoga class, heart 
health, ostomy education, Parkinson’s support 

Have Lynn report entire engagement 
survey next year.  

9



 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

group, Remind program. She also presented a rollup 
for fiscal year 2016. Gross revenue was up due to 
annual pricing increase, total expenses were up due 
to annual salary increases, agency costs, 
professional fees, pharmacy costs and purchased 
services, OP UOS down due to possible leakage.  
The committee suggests the net revenue be 
presented.  
Quality indicators, goals, results and analysis plan 
was reviewed and discussed for the last year. Ms. 
Kuwahara spoke on the great improvements in 
Medication Bar Code compliance and RUG levels 
in the last year.  
Performance Improvement projects in 2016- In 
patient PT did early mobilization in the ICU will be 
continued in 2017. Outpatient PT and Hand 
Therapy Treatment worked on strategies to 
maximize outcomes and reimbursement, will be 
continued in 2017. 
New projects in 2017– Cardiopulmonary – efficient 
scheduling of outpatient testing. Medical Imaging – 
Head CT/MRI results within 30 minutes of arrival 
for strokes. 
Future plans- Electronic Health Record for wound 
care, occupation health and outpatient rehab 
implemented this year. 3D Mammo project to bring 
the technology back into the hospital will begin next 
week.  
We serve as a clinical rotation site for multiple 
colleges.  

6. QUALITY REPORT JUNE 017 Lovejoy Inform/Action 

 Ms. Lovejoy reported that the Prime grant data 
abstraction and gathering will be complete by the 
September meeting.   
Ms. Lovejoy reviewed the action planning for 
CIHQ survey She will bring back the report in 
September.   
Ms. Lovejoy reviewed the medical staff projects 
that are ongoing, which include moving closer to 
having an all-electronic credentialing and 
privileging process. She also announced a cocktail 

MOTION: by Webber to approve, 
2nd by Rymer. All in favor.  

10



 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

reception for Dr. Veluz and Dr. Mariano on August 
10th.  She also reviewed the current medical staff 
election results for the various departments.  
 

7.   BOARD QUALITY DASHBOARD Lovejoy Inform 

  Ms. Lovejoy presented the Quality dashboard. A 
lengthy review and discussion ensued regarding the 
findings. The committee found opportunities for 
clarification on some of the presented data, Ms. 
Lovejoy agreed to follow up this.   
In reference to the clinical process of care core 
measures the committee expressed concerns 
regarding the some of the Emergency Department 
metrics, particularly the long average length of time 
between arrival and discharge. These metrics have 
not been close to meeting the benchmarks for at 
least the last year. They discussed the options of 
how to address these issues and follow up with 
them.  
  

MOTION: Rymer recommends that 
a performance improvement project 
be under taken to understand what is 
causing the longer than benchmarked 
time from door to discharge in the 
ED. With a follow up back to the 
committee on whether and how to get 
them to the benchmark.   
2nd by Minardi.  
MOTION: by Minardi to approve 
Ms. Lovejoy taking the committee 
recommendation to the Board of 
Directors, 2nd by Woodward. All in 
favor 

8.   PATIENT CARE SERVICES DASHBOARD Kobe Inform 

 Deferred to next month  

9. UPON ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR SESSION Rymer  

 Regular session adjourned at 6:36 p.m.  

10.  CLOSED SESSION 

 Calif. Health & Safety Code § 32155  Medical Staff 
Credentialing & Peer Review Report 

Rymer/Lovejoy 
 

Action 

11. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION Rymer Inform/Action 

  MOTION: by Minardi to approve 2nd 
by Rymer. All in favor 

12. ADJOURN Rymer  

 Meeting adjourned at 6:39 p.m.  

 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

 
8. 
 

RESOLUTION No. 335 
ADOPTION AND 

IMPLEMENTATION OF 
DESIGN BUILD 

CONSTRUCTION 
PROCESS FOR THE 

OUTPATIENT 
DIAGNOSTIC CENTER 

 

31



Outpatient Diagnostic Center
Sonoma Valley Health Care District Board of  Directors

September 7, 2017

32



Agenda

Slide

Design Build Process

Request for Qualifications

Request for Proposals

Project Components

Questions

Page Number

3

4

5

6

7

33



Design Build

• Sonoma Valley Healthcare District with approval of its 
governing board may procure design build contracts for 
public works projects in excess of one million dollars.

• Sonoma Valley Healthcare District Board shall develop a 
conflict of interest policy to apply towards design build 
contracts.

34



Request for Qualifications
• The Sonoma Valley Healthcare District shall prepare and issue a 

Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) to prequalify the design build 
entities whose proposals shall be evaluated for final selection.  RFQ 
to include:
• Scope

• Expected Cost Range

• Methodology to Evaluate Proposals

• Process for Final Selection of Design Build Entity

• Standard Template – RFQ Application

• Evidence that members of the design build team have completed or demonstrated 
experience, competency, capability to complete projects of similar size, scope, and 
complexity.

35



Request for Proposals
• The Sonoma Valley Healthcare District shall prepare and issue 

a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) that invites prequalified 
entities to submit competitive sealed proposals for final 
selection.  RFP to include:
• Scope documents

• Estimated Cost Range

• Methodology used to Evaluate Proposals (Best Value or Low Bid)

• Best Value will be the methodology we use

36



Project Components
• CT – Room Expansion + Equipment Upgrade (Does Kelly want descriptions?)

• MRI –Modular Unit @ old ED Ambulance Drop Off

• Ultrasound – Build New Room for Upgraded Equipment

• Nuclear Medicine – Renovate Existing Space + Equipment Upgrade

• Restrooms – As Required by Code

• Breakrooms – As Required by Code

• Cardiopulmonary – Relocate Department

• Outpatient Entrance / Waiting Area / Parking Lot ‐ Renovation

• Seismic Retrofit – As Determined by SPC‐4D Study

• East Wing Entrance / Café Entrance ‐ Renovation

37



Questions

38



 

 

 
 
 
To:        SVHCD Board of Directors 

Meeting Date:      September 7, 2018 

Prepared by:    Kelly Mather 

Agenda Item Title:     Resolution 335 Adoption and implementation of design build construction 
process for the outpatient diagnostic center.  

Recommendation:     
The board approves the resolution to do a request for qualifications (RFQ) for the Outpatient Diagnostic 
Center project. 
 
Background: 
Within the next few years, the CT Scanner and the MRI will need to be replaced.  Currently, the MRI is in 
a trailer and patients must walk outside for their tests.  The rest of the imaging department is not 
efficient and must be expanded to meet the current codes.  We are excited to upgrade our CT 
technology to the latest version. Finally, the waiting room is too small.  Our plan is to replace this very 
expensive imaging equipment with the latest technology, improve patient efficiency and create a new 
outpatient entrance that will also include Cardiopulmonary thereby decreasing the duplication of 
support staff.   
 
The Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation has agreed to do a capital campaign for this center.  As they 
raise the funds, we will move forward with the project.  We do anticipate that they will raise enough for 
us to begin the design phase of the project at the time we select the partner from the RFP process in 
early 2018.  Since it takes at least 12 months to get a design approved by OSHPD, it is prudent to begin 
the design now so that we can hopefully begin construction in 2019. 
 
With the recommended design build process, we start with an RFQ to ensure any potential partners 
have the qualifications to do the construction project. Once we have identified potential partners who 
meet the qualifications, we will then do an RFP to find the best partner to do the design and 
construction. 
 
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 

If we postpone beginning the process for this project, especially the replacement of the CT Scanner and MRI, 
we may end up with an emergency situation due to the age of the equipment which will increase costs and 
affect patient care 
 

Financial Impact: 

The SVHF has agreed to raise the funds for the project and has also agreed to fund the consultants.   
   
Attachments: 
Resolution #355 and a sample application for General Contractor Qualification (RFQ) 

39



SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  335 

 
ADOPTION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF DESIGN/BUILD CONSTRUCTION PROCESS FOR 

THE OUTPATIENT DIAGNOSITC CENTER 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Governing Board”) of the Sonoma Valley Health Care 
District (the “District”) previously directed staff to prepare a plan to renovate the Outpatient Services 
space at the Sonoma Valley Hospital (the “Hospital”); and 
 
WHEREAS, after planning and design work by District staff and its consultants, the District identified a 
preferred plan consisting of an Outpatient Diagnostic Center (the “Project”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the District staff and its consultants have prepared a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”)  
identifying the basic scope, concept drawings and needs of the Project, the expected cost range, and 
other information deemed necessary to inform interested parties of the public works contracting 
opportunity; and  
 
WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code section 32132.5 authorizes the District, upon approval 
of the Governing Board, to use the Design-Build method of project delivery when contracting for the 
construction of a building and improvements directly related to a hospital or health facility building at 
Sonoma Valley Hospital; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board finds that use of the Design-Build delivery method for public works 
will likely (1) reduce comparable costs of the Project, (2) expedite completion of the Project, and (3) 
provide features and benefits unavailable through the traditional Design-Bid-Build process; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Directors hereby declares its intention 
to use the Design-Build procedure described in Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 22160) of Part 3 of 
Division 2 of the Public Contract Code to assign contracts for the renovation of the Outpatient Services 
space (the Project) at Sonoma Valley Hospital.  
 
APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Board of Directors of the Sonoma Health Care 
District, Sonoma County, State of California, on September 7, 2017, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  _________ 
NOES:  _________ 
ABSENT: _________ 
ABSTAIN:  _________ 
      _____________________________ 
      Jane Hirsch, RN, MS, Board Chair 
      SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
 
ATTEST:  

    _________________________ 
     Bill Boerum, Board Secretary 
     SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

40



 

 
9. 

BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT, 
MARKETING & 
COMMUNITY 
RELATIONS 

PRESENTATION 

41



Marketing & Community 
Outreach Report

September 2017

42



Agenda

 Goals
 Reputation Discussion

 Marketing
 FY17 Highlights
 New and Expanded Initiatives

 Community Outreach
 Website and Social Media
 Community Events, Partnerships
 Community Benefit

43



Our Goals

 Growth Increase use of SVH services in 
Sonoma Valley and the North Bay
 Increase revenues in key service lines such as bariatrics
 Support all services
 Market services outside of Sonoma Valley
 Inform community of new physicians and services

44



 Engagement Strengthen community 
connection through education, partnerships, 
communications and outreach
 Facilitate community interaction for physicians
 Support Foundation efforts to engage donors
 Increase outreach to Latino community
 Expand relationships with community partners

45



 Reputation Communicate why Sonoma 
Valley residents should have confidence in their 
hospital
 Explain why we have a great hospital
 Communicate quality standards and high level of patient 

satisfaction (testimonials, RateMyHospital)
 Address concerns raised by parcel tax vote

46



What Is “Reputation?”

 Fortune’s “Most Admired Companies” reflect:
 Ability to attract and retain good people
 Management quality
 Social responsibility
 Innovation
 Product or service quality
 Wise use of corporate assets
 Financial soundness
 Long-term investment value
 Global competitiveness

47



SVH’s Reputation Is Solid

2015 Survey
91% Important to community health
77% Favorable perception of Hospital
67% Say something positive when asked

2016 Survey
80% Patients satisfied with quality of care

48



But There Are Concerns

 Main concern is financial health and fiscal 
management

 It’s important we address these concerns and 
we are taking steps to do so

49



Our 6-Month Plan
Ju

n-
Au

g

Address issues raised, 
clarify misinformation
•Step up 
communications, 
including social media
•Update messaging
•Use compensation study
•Involve stakeholders
•Reassert transparency
• Board Chair report
• CEO blog
• Open meetings

Se
pt

-N
ov

Community meetings
Continue 
communications (News 
releases, blogs)
Board involvement
Annual report
Community survey in 
2018

50



Our Audiences

 Sonoma Valley residents
 SVH stakeholders

Physicians    Hospital Staff
Community Leaders   Donors
Community   Health Partners

 North Bay residents
 North Bay referring                            

physicians

51



Our Marketing Toolkit

Advertising,
Sponsorships

News, Articles,
Social Media,
Recognition

Website, Blogs,
Collateral, Events

Use Marketing and Communications 
Dollars Wisely

52



Expanded
Regional Approach

Bariatric Surgery
Orthopedic Surgery

Home Health
Occupational Health

Wound Care

53



Regional Approach             
To Bariatric Surgery

 Leveraged opportunity in North Bay
 Increased referrals through direct mail to 

physicians in 5 counties
 Developed new collateral for physician and 

health clinic referrers, and patients 
(English and Spanish)

54



Regional Approach             
To Bariatric Surgery

Results:

+21% growth in bariatric surgeries       
worth $374,000

Increased referrals from physicians and  
health centers outside Sonoma Valley

55



Bariatrics Digital     
Advertising

 6-week Fall online advertising test 
 Facebook and Google AdWords
 Sonoma and No Marin, Southern Napa 

and SW Solano counties
 Target women 25-55
 Ads link to landing page offering 

information on weight loss surgery
 Measurement: Key words, landing page 

traffic, seminar sign ups, conversions

56



Spotlight  On Services

“You have most of what you need            
here in Sonoma Valley”

 Continuous focus on our excellent ED
 Highlight new/expanded services, timeshares

 General Surgery, Pain Management, Ophthalmology, 
Urology, ENT, Colorectal Surgery, Nephrology

 Remind community of established services
 Joint Replacement, Rehab/PT, Radiology, Lab, SNF,   

Home Health, OB/GYN,  Wound Care 

57



Spotlight On Services
 Communicate in English and Spanish through 

newspaper articles, ads, social media, local radio, 
events, collateral

58



Annual Report (Dec)
Health & Wellness Supplement (April)

Each distributed to 7,000 homes 

59



Services Growth

 Support business development; increased 
revenue of $1.87 million

Increasing volumes in:
• Total surgeries
• Pain Management
• Outpatient services
• Emergency Visits

60



Introduce New Physicians and 
Surgeons
GirlTalk
Active Aging (Vintage House)
Educational Events (Heart                                                                    
Health Month)
KSVY Radio Talk Shows
Conversations With A Doctor

Dr. Kidd at 
GirlTalk

61



FY 2018

 Introduce expanded Women’s                                    
Health Services

 Expand bariatrics initiative                                   
(regionally and to men)

 Test digital advertising
 Launch “Conversation With                               A 

Doctor” series
 Continue to expand services                         

regionally
 Introduce new physicians

62



Reputation & Engagement
We are Sonoma Valley’s hospital,                     
committed to the health                                         
of our community
 Quality Care
 Patient-centered Values
 Human Touch
 24/7 Responsiveness

63



Community Health Focus

64



SVH Foundation
Celebration of Women
Project Pink
Patient Testimonials
Foundation Website

65



Community Communications

Strong presence through                               
news, articles, blogs,                               
advertising and events

 SVH Events Ads
 Expanded KSVY presence
 CEO blog
 New Board Chair Report
 Community presence:                                                

IT’s “Best of Sonoma” awards                                             
Springs Festival                                                                           
Hit The Road Jack 

66



Latino Community Outreach

67



Website & Social Media Growth

SVH Website*
+6% Traffic

65,000/year
Average 178/day 
68% New visitors

Top SVH website searches:
Find A  Doctor (Dr. Kidd #1)
Lab
Medical Imaging
Quality Committee
Occupational Health
Emergency Care

*July 2016 – June 2017

SVH Facebook Page*
1,098 ‘Likes’ (+9%)              

Twitter*
706 Followers (+31%)

68



Community Partnerships

 Vintage House                                   
 School District
 Community Health 

Center                                         
 La Luz
 Seven Flags
 FAHA

 Integrated Health 
Network

 Hit The Road Jack

Heart Health 
discussion at 
Seven Flags

69



Engaging Our Community

 Goal: Draw 1,900 community participants
 Result: 2,705 participants 

 Seniors Community Talks (749)                 
 Health Fairs (545)
 Community Partnership events (427)
 Active Aging (205)
 Health Screenings (178) 
 Patient Education events (165)
 Women’s Health events (150)
 Advance Directives Seminars (94)
 Wellness University (79)
 Community Talks & Tours (40)
 Other (27)

70



Community Benefit

71



Community Benefit
Goal: 1,500 Hours Annually

Result: 1,424 Hours

 Blood Pressure Clinics – FAHA, 
Seven Flags

 FISH
 Healthy Kids
 Integrative Health Network 
 Tutoring
 SVH community events
 Advance Health Care Directive 

Workshops
 Community Service Organizations 

– Rotary, Kiwanis

 Chamber of Commerce events
 Springs Community Alliance
 KSVY programming – expert guests
 Schools of Hope
 Sonoma Valley Mentoring Alliance
 Sonoma Valley School Health 

Committee 
 Sonoma Valley Senior Alliance & 

Network
 SVHF Celebration of Women

72



Internal Communications

 Employee Newsletter
 Internal distribution of                               news 

releases
 New posting system                                    

promoting events                                      
throughout Hospital

73



What’s Coming

 Active Aging Series (Sept-Oct)
 Birthplace Classes (Sept-Nov)
 PI Fair (Oct)
 Conversation With A Doctor   

(Oct and Nov)
 Community Fair (Oct)
 GirlTalk – Dr. LaFollette (Oct)
 Project Pink (Oct)
 Annual Report (Dec)
 Heart Health Month/Cardio 

(Feb)

74



Thank you

75



 

 
10. 

 
   RESOLUTION No. 336 
SETTING THE GO BOND 

TAX RATE 2017-2018 

 

76



 
 

Meeting Date:   September 7, 2017 

Prepared by:    Ken Jensen, CFO 

Agenda Item Title:    Resolution No. 336 ‐ Setting the Tax Rate for the 2017‐18 Fiscal Year for 

GO Bonds 

 

Recommendation:  

The Finance Committee recommends to the District Board the approval of the General 

Obligation Bonds tax rate of $31.90 per $100,000 of the assessed value of the secured property 

in the District. 

 

Background and Reasoning:   

This is consistent with prior year resolutions. The total assessed value of the secured property 

in the District is $9,448,733,253.  The tax required to assure payment of the principle interest 

and reasonable reserve for the Bonds for Fiscal Year 2017‐2018 is $2,805,321.  The rate, 

calculated per the Sonoma County’s approved formula is $31.90 per $100,000 of assessed 

valuation. This will generate $3,014,146.  The required principle and interest portion is 

$2,798,326.  The trustee reserve is $209,874. 

 

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions:   

Without the resolution, the County cannot collect the General Obligation Bond tax.  

 

Financial Impact:  

The resolution will instruct the County to collect the General Obligation Bond tax to be paid to 

the bond holders. 

 

Selection Process and Contract History:  

The Hospital has done similar resolutions in the past. 

 

Board Committee:  

Finance 

 

Attachments:  

Resolution No. 336 

 

77



 
 

 

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION No. 336 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE TAX RATE FOR THE 2017-18 FISCAL YEAR 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF INTEREST ON THE SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH 

CARE DISTRICT (SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS, ELECTION OF 2008, SERIES A (2009) 

 
WHEREAS, by resolution, adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Sonoma 

Valley Health Care District (the “District”) on August 6, 2008, the Board determined and declared 
that public interest and necessity demanded the need to raise moneys for the expansion, 
improvement, acquisition, construction, equipping and renovation of health facilities of the 
District (the “Project”), and the Board called an election to be held within the boundaries of the 
District in accordance with the California Elections Code; 

 
WHEREAS, a special municipal election was held in the District on November 4, 2008 and 

thereafter canvassed pursuant to law; 
 
WHEREAS, an election there was submitted to and approved by the requisite two-thirds 

(2/3) vote of the qualified electors of the District a question as to the issuance and sale of general 
obligation bonds of the District for the purpose of raising money for the Project in the maximum 
aggregate principal amount of $35,000,000, payable from the levy of an ad valorem tax against all 
taxable property in the District; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 4 of Division 23 (commencing with section 32300) of the 

California Health and Safety Code (the “Act”), the District is empowered to issue general 
obligation bonds; 

 
WHEREAS, the District sold, on January 27, 2009, an initial series of bonds for the purpose 

of raising funds needed for the Project and for other authorized costs in the aggregate principal 
amount of $12,000,000, identified as the “Sonoma Valley Health Care District (Sonoma County, 
California) General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2008, Series A (2009)” (the “Bonds”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District sold, on August 1, 2010, an additional series of bonds for the 

purpose of raising funds needed for the Project and for other authorized costs in the aggregate 
principal amount of $23,000,000, identified as the “Sonoma Valley Health Care District (Sonoma 
County, California) General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2008, Series B (2010)” (the “Bonds”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the District sold, on January 28, 2014, a refunding series of bonds for the 
purpose of refunding the Sonoma Valley Health Care District (Sonoma County, California) 
General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2008, Series A (2009)” in the aggregate principal amount of 
$12,437,000, identified as the “Sonoma Valley Health Care District (Sonoma County, California) 
2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds” (the “Bonds”); and 

 

78



 

 SVHCD Res# 336, Sept. 7, 2017 

WHEREAS, the County has requested that the District provide to the County the tax rate 
required for Fiscal Year 2017-18 to pay interest on the Bonds and to provide a reasonable reserve;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH 

CARE DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals. All of the recitals herein are true and correct. To the extent that the 

recitals relate to findings and determinations of the Board, the Board declares such findings or 
determinations to be made thereby. 

 
Section 2. Tax Rate; Remittance.  
 
(a) Based upon the County’s estimate of assessed valuation of all secured property in the 

District ($9,448,733,253) the tax rate required to assure payment of the principal of, interest on 
and a reasonable reserve for the Bonds for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 is $31.90 per $100,000 of assessed 
valuation. It is the intent of the District to provide to the County, by resolution, the tax rate 
required to assure payment of the principal of, interest on and a reasonable reserve for the Bonds 
for Fiscal Year 2017-18 and each Fiscal Year thereafter, so long as the Bonds remain outstanding. 
However, in the event the District fails to provide a tax rate in any year, the County is directed to 
apply the most recently provided tax rate in such year. 

 
(b) The District hereby delegates to the County Board of Supervisors the authority to 

annually levy and collect the annual ad valorem property taxes required for the payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

 
(c) The District hereby requests that such amounts, as collected, be remitted directly to 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., the District’s paying agent for the Bonds. 
 
Section 3. Request for Necessary County Actions. The County Board of Supervisors and 

the County Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector, and other officials of the County, are 
hereby directed to take whatever action that may be necessary pursuant to law to provide for the 
levy and collection of a property tax on all taxable property within the District at the tax rate 
specified in Section 2(a) above. 

 
Section 4. General Authority. The Chair, the Secretary, the Chief Executive Officer and the 

Chief Financial Officer, and their respective designees, are each hereby authorized, empowered 
and directed in the name and on behalf of the District to take any and all steps which they or any 
of them might deem necessary or appropriate in order to give effect to this resolution. 

 

79



 

 SVHCD Res# 336, Sept. 7, 2017 

Section 5. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately on and after its 
adoption. 

 
 

* * * * * * * * 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of September 2017, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
 

   
Jane Hirsch 

Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma Valley Health Care District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   

Bill Boerum 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

Sonoma Valley Health Care District 
 

80



 

 
11. 

   RESOLUTION No. 337 
ISSUANCE OF BONDS TO 

REFUND THE 
OUTSTANDING 

GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS 

81



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:      SVHCD Board of Directors 
 
FROM:     Gary L. Hicks, President, G.L. Hicks Financial, LLC and 
      Ken Jensen, CFO 
 
DATE:      September 7, 2017 
 
Agenda Item Title:  Resolution  No.  337,  Authorizing  Commencement  of  Proceedings  in 

Connection with the 2017 Issuance of Bonds to Refund Outstanding GO 
Bonds, etc. 

 
 
Recommendation:  
On September 7, 2017, the District’s Board of Directors (the”Board”) will be asked to approve 
an  Initial Resolution authorizing certain officers of the District to take steps necessary  for the 
issuance of refunding revenue bonds (the “2017 Refunding Bonds”) in an amount necessary to 
provide for the refunding of all of the District’s outstanding Series B (2010) General Obligation 
Bonds (the “Bonds to be Refunded”). Adoption of this resolution does not give management or 
your advisors the authority to issue the 2017 Refunding Bonds, as final authority for issuance of 
these bonds  is expected to be sought at the Board’s meeting on October 5, 2017, and will be 
contingent upon the facts, circumstances and conditions that exist at that time.  
 
Background and Current Situation: 
Information regarding the Bonds to be refunded is provided below as background information: 
 
    2010B 
    Bonds     
Proposed Refunding Amount    $19,900,000     
Interest Rates    2.50%‐2.75%     
Final Bond Maturity    2031     
 
We  believe  that  favorable  tax‐exempt  interest  rates  currently  available  offer  the District  an 
opportunity to generate significant debt service savings relative to the Bonds to be refunded. 
While  interest  rates  for underwritten bonds are not determined until  the bonds are actually 
sold, the current interest rate environment suggests a possible weighted‐average interest rate 
of approximately 2.60% based upon discussions with selected trading desks and purchasers. We 
will work with  the  District  to  secure  a  commitment  from  one  or more  bank  purchasers  to 
purchase the 2017 Refunding Bonds that would also provide an interest rate lock up to 30 days 

82



 

prior  to  closing  the  proposed  refinancing,  if  from  a  bank  purchaser. Without  increasing  the 
maturity date of the Bonds to be refunded, we estimate that total debt service savings over the 
remaining  life of  the Bonds  to be  refunded  to be  approximately $2.0 million  (approximately 
$1.6 million  on  a  present‐value  basis)  based  on  current  estimated market  conditions.  This 
estimated  savings,  if  achieved,  will  reduce  debt  service  for  the  District  and  the  District’s 
taxpayers by an average of approximately $140,000 annually.  If the desired  level of savings  is 
not yet available, bonds will not be issued until an acceptable level of savings can be achieved 
with a refunding.  A decision by the Board on this issue will be final. 
 
Initial  Resolution.  The  initial  resolution  is  preliminary  to  the  final  resolution  planned  to  be 
considered  for approval by the Board at  its meeting on October 5, 2017, subject to the  facts, 
circumstances and conditions that exist at that time.  The initial resolution describes the use of 
proceeds of the 2017 Refunding Bonds, establishes a limit as to the principal amount of bonds 
authorized to be  issued and establishes a not‐to‐exceed final maturity for the 2017 Refunding 
Bonds.  The  initial  resolution  authorizes  the  Chair  and Vice  Chair  of  the  Board,  the District’s 
Chief  Executive  Officer  and  its  Chief  Financial  Officer  to  take  any  and  all  necessary  action 
needed to carry out the intended purposes of this initial resolution. 
 
Attachments: 
Resolution No. 337  

83



Quint & Thimmig LLP  

 
SVHCD RESOLUTION 337 | September 7, 2017

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 337 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMENCEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS OF THE DISTRICT TO 

REFUND THE OUTSTANDING SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT (SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) GENERAL OBLIGATION 

BONDS, ELECTION OF 2008, SERIES B (2010), AND APPOINTING A 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR AND BOND COUNSEL IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH 
 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Sonoma Valley Health Care 
District (the “District”), as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, the District, on August 10, 2010, issued its “Sonoma Valley Health Care 

District General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2008, Series B (2010)” (the “2010 Bonds”), in the 
original principal amount of $23,000,000, for authorized District purposes, of which $20,070,000 
principal amount remains outstanding; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 9 of Chapter 3 (commencing with section 53550) of 

Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Act”), the District is empowered to 
issue general obligation refunding bonds; 

 
WHEREAS, the District intends to issue general obligation refunding bonds (the “2017 

Refunding Bonds”) in conformity with the Act to refund, on an advance basis, the 2010 Bonds; 
 
WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the 2017 Refunding Bonds will be purchased by one or 

two institutional investors on a private placement basis; 
 
WHEREAS, it is desirable for the Board to authorize the commencement of proceedings 

in connection with the issuance and sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds and to engage a financial 
advisor and bond counsel in connection therewith; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Board hereby authorizes the commencement of proceedings in connection 

with the issuance and sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds. Officers and officials of the District are 
authorized to proceed with the preparation of the necessary documents in connection with the 
issuance and sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds, subject to the final approval thereof by the Board 
at a subsequent meeting. 

 

84



 
SVHCD RESOLUTION 337 | September 7, 2017

Section 2. G.L. Hicks Financial, LLC, is hereby designated as financial advisor to the 
District in connection with the issuance and sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds. The Chair of the 
Board, the Vice Chair of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, 
are each hereby authorized and directed in the name and on behalf of the District to execute an 
agreement for financial advisory services with such firm, with compensation to be paid 
thereunder from the proceeds of the 2017 Refunding Bonds. 

 
Section 3. Quint & Thimmig LLP, is hereby designated as bond counsel to the District in 

connection with the issuance and sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds. The Chair of the Board, the 
Vice Chair of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, are each 
hereby authorized and directed in the name and on behalf of the District to execute an agreement 
for legal services with such firm, with compensation to be paid thereunder from the proceeds of 
the 2017 Refunding Bonds. 

 
Section 4. The Chair of the Board, the Vice Chair of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, 

the Chief Financial Officer, the Secretary and other appropriate officers and officials of the District 
are hereby authorized and directed to take such action and to execute such documents as may be 
necessary or desirable to effectuate the intent of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5. This Initial Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage and 

adoption. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of September 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
 

   
Jane Hirsch 

Chair, Board of Directors 
Sonoma Valley Health Care District 

 
ATTEST: 
                ________________________________ 
                                  Bill Boerum 
                    Secretary, Board of Directors 
              Sonoma Valley Health Care District 

85



 

 
12. 

   RESOLUTION No. 338 
AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE OF A TAX & 
REVENUE 

ANTICIPATION NOTE  

86



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date: September 7, 2017  

Prepared by:  Finance Committee 

Agenda Item Title:  Resolution #338 authorizing the issuance of a tax and revenue anticipation 
note 

Recommendation: 
Recommend that the Board approve the resolution to apply to Sonoma County for an advance on 
the December, 2017 payment of Parcel Tax funds. 

Background: 

The Hospital’s reimbursement from federal and state insurance (74% of gross revenue) is below the cost 
to provide the medical service to these patients. 

The shortfall is primarily made up from three sources: 

 Commercial insurance (based on eligible billings) 
 Parcel Tax proceeds 
 Federal payments (IGT, Inter Government Transfer) for serving a disproportionate share of 

disadvantaged patients in the community. 

The anticipated schedule for Federal payments and Parcel Tax proceeds to the Hospital is: 

 November/December                    Federal payment (net amount)                  $ 0.8 million 
 December  25th                             1st Parcel Tax payment                              $ 1.9 million 
 April 25th                                      2nd Parcel Tax payment                             $ 1.9 million 

The Federal payments require matching funds submitted with the application by the Hospital. The present 
cash projections show a need for $1,475,000 in matching funds ($800,000 for the Federal IGT application 
and an additional $675,000 for the Hospital’s Prime Grant) in the period from August to September. 

This presents a timing issue that disrupts the normal the cash flow of the Hospital.  During the summer, 
the hospital’s monthly net revenues are the lowest of the year, generating a lower amount of cash receipts.  

The ability to receive an advance from the County on the December parcel tax payment will make it 
possible to provide the matching funds without a short term increase in the line of credit.  

The interest cost on the advance amount would be at an annualized rate of 2%. The maximum amount of 
the advance available is $1.5 million. 

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 

Providing the matching funds without the Parcel Tax advance payment would create negative 
consequences 

A temporary increase in the existing line of credit. 

Lower cash balances 

87



 

Financial Impact: 

The cost for a $1.5 million advance for the four months prior to the scheduled December tax payment 
would be approximately $10,000. 

Attachment:   

Resolution to Request an Advance on the Parcel Tax 

 

88



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO 338 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA VALLEY 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A TAX AND 

REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTE IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$1,500,000. 

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53850 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of 
California (the “Government Code”) contained in Article 7.6, entitled “Temporary Borrowing,” a 
healthcare district may borrow money by issuing notes (the “Notes”) for any purpose for which 
the health care district is authorized to expend moneys, including but not limited to, current 
expenses, capital expenditures, investment and reinvestment, and the discharge of any obligation 
or indebtedness of the district;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53856 of the Government Code, the District may 
pledge its parcel tax revenue to the repayment of Notes, which shall be issued as a general 
obligation of the District, and to the extent not paid from the taxes pledged for the payment 
thereof, shall be paid with interest thereon from any other moneys of the District lawfully 
available therefor as required by Section 53857 of the Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to finance certain obligations incurred by the District in 
connection with prior operations and ongoing operations: and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has determined that the sum of $1,500,000 is needed to satisfy 
payment obligations of the District which the District anticipates will become payable prior to 
the receipt of anticipated parcel tax revenue, and that it is necessary that said sum be borrowed in 
anticipation of the receipt of taxes to be received by the District during Fiscal Year 2017–2018; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the District 
to finance its obligations through the issuance of tax and revenue anticipation notes and has 
determined to issue Sonoma Valley Health Care District Parcel Tax Revenue Anticipation Note, 
Series 2017 (the “Series 2017 Note”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Series 2017 Note shall mature on January 31, 2018, which is consistent 
with the requirement that repayment be made from available funds that have been received or 
accrued to the District within the fiscal year in which the Notes are issued, or in a succeeding 
fiscal year from funds accruing in the fiscal year of issuance; and 
 
           WHEREAS, the District to provide authority to staff to enter into a parcel tax agreement 
with the Sonoma County. 
 

89



2 
 

    
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Board of Directors of the Sonoma Valley 
Health Care District resolves as follows: 
 
Section 1.    The Series 2017 Note may be issued in order to obtain moneys to carry out the 
District’s purposes.  The maximum principal amount of the Series 2017 Note which may be 
issued hereunder is limited to $1,500,000.  
 
Section 2.  The Series 2017 Note shall be evidenced and issued in the principal amount of 
$1,500,000.  Registered ownership of the Series 2017 Note will be with Sonoma County, as 
purchaser of the Note, and shall not be transferred thereafter.  The Series 2017 Note in the 
principal amount of $1,500,000 constitutes  a “note” and is being issued pursuant to the 
provisions of section 53854 of the California Government Code.  
 
Section 3.  The Series 2017 Note shall be dated as of September 7, 2017,  and interest thereon 
shall be payable upon maturity.  The Series 2017 Note shall mature on January 31, 2018, and 
shall bear interest at the rate of 2.00 percent per annum.  If the District fails to pay the note when 
due, the ACTTC may retain enough of the parcel tax proceeds to satisfy the principle and 
interest. 
 
Section 4. The Series 2017 Note shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.  

Section 5.  The Board of Directors has reviewed all proceedings heretofore taken relative to the 
authorization of the Series 2017 Note and has found, as a result of such review, and hereby finds 
and determines that all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, happen or be performed 
precedent to and in the issuance of the Series 2017 Note do exist, have happened and have been 
performed in due time, form and manner as required by applicable law, and the District is now 
authorized, pursuant to each and every requirement of applicable law to issue the Series 2017 Note.   

Section 6.  The Series 2017 Note may be redeemed prior to Maturity at any time, without any 
premium.   

Section 7. The District’s obligation to pay the principal and interest on the Series 2017 Note shall 
be an obligation payable from parcel tax revenues and, to the extent parcel tax revenues are 
insufficient therefor, subject to any existing or future liens or encumbrances thereon, from any 
other available moneys of the District. 

Section 8.  The District’s Chief Executive Officer, or designee, upon the advice of the District’s 
legal counsel or special financial consultants, is hereby authorized to do any and all things and to 
execute, modify and deliver any and all documents that they may deem necessary in order to 
effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution and to otherwise carry out the purposes 
of this Resolution.   

Section 9.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 

90



3 
 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this September 7, 2017, by the following votes: 
 
AYES 
NOES 
ABSENT 
ABSTAIN 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jane Hirsch 
Chair, Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bill Boerum 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
S0392001/4834-1657-6590-1  

91



 

FORM OF NOTE 

United States of America  
State of California 
Sonoma County 

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT  
(Sonoma County, California) 

Parcel Tax Revenue Anticipation Note, Series 2017 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DATED DATE: 
2.00% January 31, 2018  

 

REGISTERED OWNER: SONOMA COUNTY TREASURY 
  
PRINCIPAL SUM: $1,500,000.00 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Sonoma Valley Health Care District, a local health care 
district organized and existing under and pursuant to The Local Health Care District Law of the 
State of California (the “District”), hereby acknowledges itself indebted to and promises to pay to 
the Owner stated above, the Principal Sum stated above in lawful money of the United States of 
America, on the Maturity Date stated above, or date of earlier redemption as described below, 
together with interest thereon in like lawful money from the date hereof until payment of such 
Principal Sum shall be discharged, at the Interest Rate per annum stated above. 

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that this Note is issued pursuant to the provisions 
of Resolution No. 338 of the Board of Directors of the District duly passed and adopted on 
September 7, 2017, and pursuant to Section 32130 of the California Health and Safety Code, and 
that all things, conditions, and acts required to exist, happen, and be performed, exist, have 
happened, and been performed in regular and due time, form, and manner as required by law, and 
that the amount of this Note, together with all other indebtedness and obligations of the District, 
does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution and laws of the State of California.  

 The Principal Sum of the Note, together with the interest thereon, shall be payable from 
taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts and other monies which are held or received by the District 
for the fiscal year 2017-2018 and which are lawfully available for the current expenses and other 
obligations of the District. Specifically, the Principal Sum of the Note, together with the interest 
thereon, shall be payable from the proceeds of the District’s special tax on parcels of property 
within the District authorized at an election held on June 6, 2017 (the “Tax”).  

 The Note is issued as a fully registered Note, without coupons. The Note is not transferable 
by its registered owner.  

 The Note shall be redeemed at any time, without premium, upon receipt by the District of 
proceeds from the Tax for fiscal year 2017-2018.  

92



 

If the Note is called for redemption and payment is duly provided therefor, interest shall 
cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT has caused 
this Note to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual signature of its Chief Executive 
Officer and attested by the manual signature of the Secretary of its Board of Directors, all as of the 
Dated Date stated above. 

  SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT 

   
   
  By:  
   Kelly Mather, Chief Executive Officer 
ATTEST:    
    
    
Bill Boerum, Secretary of the Board of 

Directors 
   

 
 

93



CLERK'S CERTIFICATE 
 
 
 I, _______________________________, Clerk of the Governing Board of the Sonoma 
Valley Health Care District of the County of Sonoma, State of California, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a special/regular 
meeting of the Governing Board of said District, regularly held at the regular meeting place 
thereof, on July 1, 2009, of which meeting all the members of said Governing Board had due 
notice. 
 
 I further certify that said resolution has not been amended, modified, or rescinded since the 
date of its adoption and the same is now in full force and effect. 
 

ATTEST:  This _____________ day of _________________________. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
                   Stacey J. Finn, Clerk of the Governing Board of  

                          the Sonoma Valley Health Care District 

        County of Sonoma, State of California 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

COUNTY TREASURER'S AUTHORIZATION 
(Per County of Sonoma Resolution 91-0271) 

The attached request for borrowing is in compliance with the requirements of Article XVI, 
Section 6, of the State Constitution and with Resolution 91-0271 of the County of Sonoma. 
 
Approved By: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Erick Roeser 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector 
County of Sonoma 
 
Date: _________________________  
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Amount to be collected on Property Tax Bill  _______________________________ 
 
Amount requested     _______________________________ 
Percent of Property Tax Bill Requested  _______________________________ 
(Not to exceed 85% of outstanding property taxes) 

94



 

 
13. 

   FINANCIAL REPORT 
MONTH ENDING JULY 

30,  2017 

95



   

347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  SVH Finance Committee     

From:  Ken Jensen, CFO 

Date:  August 22, 2017 

Subject: Financial Report for the Month Ending July 31, 2017 

 

The actual loss of ($593,013) from operations for July was ($127,043) unfavorable to the budgeted loss 

of ($465,970). After accounting for all other activity; the July net loss was ($197,906) vs. the budgeted 

net loss of ($62,374) with a monthly EBIDA of -0.1% vs. a budgeted 2.3%.  

 

Gross patient revenue for July was $21,164,140, ($992,736) less than expected. Inpatient gross revenue 

was under budget by ($1,691,016).  Inpatient days were under budget by (139) days and inpatient 

surgeries were under budgeted expectations by (5) cases. Outpatient revenue was over budget by 

$662,451.  Outpatient visits were under budgeted expectations by (485) visits, but outpatient surgeries 

were over budget by 43 cases.  The Emergency Room gross revenue is over budget by $164,226; with ER 

visits close to budgeted expectations at 920 visits.  SNF gross charges were under budgeted expectations 

by ($102,353) and SNF patient days were under budget by (35) days.  Home Health was under budget by 

($26,044) with visits under budget by (90) visits. 

 

Deductions from revenue were favorable to budgeted expectations by $1,229,991.  The favorable 

variance is due to the recording of the Rate Range IGT for FY 15-16. The revenue deductions were offset 

by the accrual of the Rate Range IGT of $849,238 and Prime grant of $125,000. Without the accrual of 

the additional government funding, the revenue deductions would be favorable to budget by $569,025.   

 

After accounting for all other operating revenue, the total operating revenue was favorable to budget 

by $234,286.   

 

Operating Expenses of $5,592,191 were unfavorable to budget by ($361,329).  ($423,110) of the 

variance is due to the matching fee for the Rate Range IGT in which the hospital will receive $849,238 in 

September or October.  The matching fee of $509,543 was accrued for in July, but the budget for the 

matching fee was spread evenly through-out the year due to the timing of the IGT requests.  

 

Salaries and wages and agency fees are under budget by $72,018.  Salaries and wages are under budget 

by $92,985 and agency fees are over budget by ($20,967). Employee benefits are over budget by 

($28,451) due to PTO being over budget by ($9,737) and employee health benefits being over budgeted 

expectations by ($18,714). Medical and Professional Fees are better than budget by $39,331.  Medical 

fees are under budget by $26,259 and other professional fees are under budget by $13,072 due to 

96



   

347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

services not being used in July.  Supplies are over budget in July primarily in surgery, ($102,083), due to 

the cost of implants being over budget by ($83,456).  

 

After accounting for all income and expenses, but not including Restricted Contributions and GO bond 

activity, the net loss for July was ($338,323) vs. a budgeted net loss of ($217,208).  The total net loss for 

July after all activity was ($197,906) vs. a budgeted net loss of ($62,374). 

 

EBIDA for the month of July was -0.1% vs. the budgeted 2.3%. 

Patient Volumes – July 

  ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PRIOR YEAR 

Acute Discharges 76 98 -22 103 

Newborn Discharges 8 15 -7 14 

Acute Patient Days 240 379 -139 386 

SNF Patient Days 528 563 -35 563 

Home Care Visits 870 960 -90 960 

OP Gross Revenue $14,175  $13,401  $774  $12,605  

Surgical Cases 162 124 38 116 

 

Gross Revenue Overall Payer Mix – July 

  ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET VARIANCE 

Medicare 42.2% 45.3% -3.1% 42.2% 45.3% -3.1% 

Medicare Mgd 
Care 12.3% 10.0% 2.3% 12.3% 10.0% 2.3% 

Medi-Cal 20.2% 18.1% 2.1% 20.2% 18.1% 2.1% 

Self Pay 0.8% 1.3% -0.5% 0.8% 1.3% -0.5% 

Commercial 20.0% 20.4% -0.4% 20.0% 20.4% -0.4% 

Workers Comp 2.0% 2.9% -0.9% 2.0% 2.9% -0.9% 

Capitated 2.5% 2.0% 0.5% 2.5% 2.0% 0.5% 

Total 100.0% 100.0%   100.0% 100.0%   

 

 

Cash Activity for July: 

For the month of July the cash collection goal was $4,032,716 and the Hospital collected $4,012,551 or 

under the goal by ($20,165).  Days of cash on hand are 16.5 days at July 31, 2017. Accounts Receivable 

decreased from June, from 45.3 days to 44.8 days in July.  Accounts Payable decreased by $356,572 

from June and Accounts Payable days are at 42.1 

.  

 

 

 

 

97



   

347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

-Attachment A is the Payer Mix Analysis which includes the projected collection percentage by payer. 

-Attachment B is the Operating Indicators Report 

-Attachment C is the Balance Sheet 

-Attachment D (two pages) is the Statement of Revenue and Expense.  The first page breaks out the 

hospital operations and page two includes all other activity.  

-Attachment E is the Variance Analysis.  The line number tie to the Statement of Revenue and Expense 

line numbers and explains any significant variances.  

-Attachment F are the graphs for Revenue and Accounts Payable.  

-Attachment G is the Statistical Analysis 

-Attachment H is the Cash Forecast 

98



Sonoma Valley Hospital ATTACHMENT A

Payer Mix for the month of  July 31, 2017

July-17 1 YTD

Gross Revenue: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance

Medicare 8,900,050 10,031,340 -1,131,290 -11.3% 8,900,050                 10,031,340               -1,131,290 -11.3%

Medicare Managed Care 2,607,446 2,207,689 399,757 18.1% 2,607,446                 2,207,689                 399,757 18.1%

Medi-Cal 4,270,665 4,008,350 262,315 6.5% 4,270,665                 4,008,350                 262,315 6.5%

Self Pay 175,726 279,383 -103,657 -37.1% 175,726                    279,383                    -103,657 -37.1%

Commercial & Other Government 4,250,426 4,541,108 -290,682 -6.4% 4,250,426                 4,541,108                 -290,682 -6.4%

Worker's Comp. 422,772 642,153 -219,381 -34.2% 422,772                    642,153                    -219,381 -34.2%

Capitated 537,055 446,853 90,202 20.2% 537,055                    446,853                    90,202 20.2%

Total 21,164,140              22,156,876              (992,736)           21,164,140               22,156,876               (992,736)          

Net Revenue: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance

Medicare 1,308,592                1,569,664                -261,072 -16.6% 1,308,592                 1,569,664                 -261,072 -16.6%

Medicare Managed Care 387,758                   283,434                   104,324 36.8% 387,758                    283,434                    104,324 36.8%

Medi-Cal 728,405                   585,808                   142,597 24.3% 728,405                    585,808                    142,597 24.3%

Self Pay 105,436                   125,923                   -20,487 -16.3% 105,436                    125,923                    -20,487 -16.3%

Commercial & Other Government 1,252,243                1,558,988                -306,745 -19.7% 1,252,243                 1,558,988                 -306,745 -19.7%

Worker's Comp. 84,625                     165,970                   -81,345 -49.0% 84,625                      165,970                    -81,345 -49.0%

Capitated 13,506                     14,489                     -983 -6.8% 13,506                      14,489                      -983 -6.8%

Prior Period Adj/IGT 974,238                   313,272                   660,966 * 974,238                    313,272                    660,966 *

Total 4,854,803                4,617,548                237,255            5.1% 4,854,803                 4,617,548                 237,255            5.1%

Percent of Net Revenue: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance

Medicare 27.0% 34.0% -7.0% -20.6% 27.0% 34.0% -7.0% -20.6%

Medicare Managed Care 8.0% 6.1% 1.9% 31.1% 8.0% 6.1% 1.9% 31.1%

Medi-Cal 15.0% 12.7% 2.3% 18.1% 15.0% 12.7% 2.3% 18.1%

Self Pay 2.2% 2.7% -0.5% -18.5% 2.2% 2.7% -0.5% -18.5%

Commercial & Other Government 25.7% 33.8% -8.1% -24.0% 25.7% 33.8% -8.1% -24.0%

Worker's Comp. 1.7% 3.6% -1.9% -52.8% 1.7% 3.6% -1.9% -52.8%

Capitated 0.3% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0%

Prior Period Adj/IGT 20.1% 6.8% 13.3% * 20.1% 6.8% 13.3% *

Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Projected Collection Percentage: Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance

Medicare 14.7% 15.7% -1.0% -6.4% 14.7% 15.7% -1.0% -6.4%

Medicare Managed Care 14.9% 12.8% 2.1% 16.4% 14.9% 12.8% 2.1% 16.4%

Medi-Cal 17.1% 14.6% 2.5% 17.1% 17.1% 14.6% 2.5% 17.1%

Self Pay 60.0% 45.1% 14.9% 33.0% 60.0% 45.1% 14.9% 33.0%

Commercial & Other Government 29.5% 34.3% -4.8% -14.0% 29.5% 34.3% -4.8% -14.0%

Worker's Comp. 20.0% 25.8% -5.8% -22.5% 20.0% 25.8% -5.8% -22.5%

Capitated 2.5% 3.2% -0.7% -21.9% 2.5% 3.2% -0.7% -21.9%

Prior Period Adj/IGT 4.6% 1.4% 3.2% * 4.6% 1.4% 3.2% *

99



SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL ATTACHMENT B

OPERATING INDICATORS

For the Period Ended July 31, 2017

YTD

Favorable Favorable Prior

Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Year

07/31/17 07/31/17 Variance 07/31/17 07/31/17 Variance 07/31/16

Inpatient Utilization

Discharges

1 57                    84                (27)                    Acute 57 84                (27)                     88                

2 19                    14                5                       ICU 19 14                5                        15                

3 76 98                (22)                    Total Discharges 76 98                (22)                     103

4 8                      15                (7)                      Newborn 8 15                (7)                       13                

5 84 112 (28)                    Total Discharges inc. Newborns 84 112 (28)                     116

Patient Days:

6 159                  291              (132)                  Acute 159 291              (132)                   298              

7 81                    88                (7)                      ICU 81 88                (7)                       88                

8 240 379              (139)                  Total Patient Days 240 379 (139)                   386

9 7                      30                (23)                    Newborn 7 30                (23)                     28                

10 247 409              (162)                  Total Patient Days inc. Newborns 247 409 (162)                   414

Average Length of Stay:

11 2.8 3.5 (0.7)                   Acute 2.8 3.5 (0.7)                    3.4

12 4.3 6.2 (1.9)                   ICU 4.3 6.2 (1.9)                    5.9

13 3.2 3.9 (0.7)                   Avg. Length of Stay 3.2 3.9 (0.7)                    3.7

14 0.9 2.0 (1.2)                   Newborn ALOS 0.9 2.0 1.2                     2.2

Average Daily Census: 

15 5.1 9.4 (4.3)                   Acute 5.1 9.4 (4.3)                    9.6

16 2.6 2.8 (0.2)                   ICU 2.6 2.8 (0.2)                    2.8

17 7.7 12.2 (4.5)                   Avg. Daily Census 7.7 12.2 (4.5)                    12.5

18 0.2 1.0 (0.7)                   Newborn 0.23 0.96 (0.7)                    0.90

Long Term Care:

19 528                  563              (35)                    SNF Patient Days 528 563              (35)                     563              

20 23                    25                (2)                      SNF Discharges 23 25                (2)                       26                

21 17.0 18.2 (1.1)                   Average Daily Census 17.0 18.2 (1.1)                    18.2

Other Utilization Statistics

Emergency Room Statistics

22 920                  940              (20)                    Total ER Visits 920 940              (20)                     940              

Outpatient Statistics:

23 4,327               4,812           (485)                  Total Outpatients Visits 4,327 4,812           (485)                   4,217           

24 29                    34                (5)                      IP Surgeries 29 34                (5)                       43                

25 133                  90                43                     OP Surgeries 133 90                43                      73                

26 52                    34                18                     Special Procedures 52 34                18                      57                

27 870                  960              (90)                    Home Health Visits 870 960              (90)                     960              

28 301                  310              (10)                    Adjusted Discharges 301 310              (10)                     316              

29 2,332               2,384           (52)                    Adjusted Patient Days (Inc. SNF) 2,332 2,384           (52)                     2,322           

30 75.2                 76.9             (1.7)                   Adj. Avg. Daily Census (Inc. SNF) 75.2             76.9             (1.7)                    74.9             

31 1.6512             1.4000         0.251                Case Mix Index -Medicare 1.6512 1.4000 0.251                 1.8410         

32 1.5037             1.4000         0.104                Case Mix Index - All payers 1.5037 1.4000 0.104                 1.5910         

Labor Statistics

33 271                  283              11.7                  FTE's - Worked 271              283              11.7                   278              

34 318                  324              6.0                    FTE's - Paid 318              324              6.0                     320              

35 40.85               41.35           0.50                  Average Hourly Rate 40.85           41.35           0.50                   39.49           

36 24.1                 24.0             (0.1)                   Manhours / Adj. Pat Day 24.1             24.0             (0.1)                    24.4             

37 186.9               184.4           (2.5)                   Manhours / Adj. Discharge 186.9           184.4           (2.5)                    179.3           

38 23.8% 22.3% -1.5% Benefits % of Salaries 23.8% 22.3% -1.5% 23.5%

Non-Labor Statistics

39 11.0% 10.6% -0.4% Supply Expense % Net Revenue 11.0% 10.6% -0.4% 9.9%

40 1,832               1,624           (208)                  Supply Exp. / Adj. Discharge 1,832           1,624           (208)                   1,625           

41 19,161 17,386 (1,775)               Total Expense / Adj. Discharge 19,161 17,386         (1,775)                17,827

Other Indicators

42 16.5 Days Cash - Operating Funds

43 44.8 50.0             (5.2)                   Days in Net AR 44.8             50.0             (5.2)                    54.8             

44 99% Collections % of Net Revenue 99% 106.3%

45 42.1 55.0             (12.9)                 Days in Accounts Payable 42.1 55.0             (12.9)                  51.7             

46 23.6% 21.4% 2.2% % Net revenue to Gross revenue 23.6% 21.4% 2.2% 24.3%

47 23.6% % Net AR to Gross AR 23.6% 25.4%

CURRENT MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE

100



ATTACHMENT C

                                                                                   Pre-Audit

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year

Assets

Current Assets:

1   Cash 2,817,486$         3,166,281$         1,822,803$         

2   Trustee Funds 3,966,031           3,966,031           3,420,699           

3   Net Patient Receivables 8,591,450           9,409,871           8,759,013           

4   Allow Uncollect Accts (1,388,210)          (1,441,052)          (923,051)             

5       Net A/R 7,203,240           7,968,819           7,835,962           

6   Other Accts/Notes Rec 6,992,879           7,137,441           7,220,036           

7   3rd Party Receivables, Net 1,984,109           1,455,586           1,615,467           

8   Inventory 832,480              832,006              818,225              

9   Prepaid Expenses 866,556              848,434              933,945              

10         Total Current Assets 24,662,781$       25,374,598$       23,667,137$       

12 Property,Plant & Equip, Net 52,992,569$       53,261,936$       52,121,582$       

13 Specific Funds 918,789              918,711              624,979              

14 Other Assets -                          -                          144,537              

15       Total Assets 78,574,139$       79,555,245$       76,558,235$       

Liabilities & Fund Balances

Current Liabilities:

16   Accounts Payable 3,169,107$         3,525,679$         3,885,659$         

17   Accrued Compensation 4,617,538           4,524,435           4,217,183           

18   Interest Payable 661,595              551,329              685,537              

19   Accrued Expenses 1,640,488           1,623,579           1,227,518           

20   Advances From 3rd Parties 474,728              510,275              116,712              

21   Deferred Tax Revenue 6,240,850           6,808,200           5,465,995           

22   Current Maturities-LTD 1,307,131           1,302,516           1,037,255           

23   Line of Credit - Union Bank 6,973,734           6,973,734           5,923,734           

24   Other Liabilities 1,386                  1,386                  1,149,551           

25     Total Current Liabilities 25,086,557$       25,821,133$       23,709,144$       

26 Long Term Debt, net current portion 37,132,265$       37,180,889$       37,154,296$        

27 Fund Balances:

28   Unrestricted 12,476,183$       12,674,089$       12,711,969$        

29   Restricted 3,879,134           3,879,134           2,982,827           

30     Total Fund Balances 16,355,317$       16,553,223$       15,694,795$       

31 Total Liabilities & Fund Balances 78,574,139$       79,555,245$       76,558,235$       

Balance Sheet

As of July 31, 2017

                                             Sonoma Valley Health Care District

101



Page 1 of 2

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT D

Statement of Revenue and Expenses
Comparative Results

For the Period Ended July 31, 2017

YTD

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Prior Year

Volume Information
1 76                      98                      (22)                     -22% Acute Discharges 76                        98                        (22)                     -22% 103                        

2 528                    563                    (35)                     -6% SNF Days 528                      563                      (35)                     -6% 563                        

3 870                    960                    (90)                     -9% Home Care Visits 870                      960                      (90)                     -9% 960                        

4 14,175              13,401              774                    6% Gross O/P Revenue (000's) 14,175$              13,401$              774                    6% 12,605$                 

Financial Results
Gross Patient Revenue

5 5,006,287$      6,697,303$      (1,691,016)       -25% Inpatient 5,006,287$         6,697,303$         (1,691,016)       -25% 6,705,658$           

6 7,385,263         6,722,812         662,451            10% Outpatient 7,385,263           6,722,812           662,451            10% 6,089,038             

7 6,513,046         6,348,820         164,226            3% Emergency 6,513,046           6,348,820           164,226            3% 6,225,477             

8 1,956,071         2,058,424         (102,353)           -5% SNF 1,956,071           2,058,424           (102,353)           -5% 2,006,658             

9 303,473            329,517            (26,044)             -8% Home Care 303,473              329,517              (26,044)             -8% 332,314                 

10 21,164,140$    22,156,876$    (992,736)          -4% Total Gross Patient Revenue 21,164,140$      22,156,876$      (992,736)          -4% 21,359,145$         

Deductions from Revenue

11 (17,160,706)$   (17,729,993)$   569,287            3% Contractual Discounts (17,160,706)$     (17,729,993)$     569,287            3% (17,193,788)$        

12 (100,000) (100,000)           -                     0% Bad Debt (100,000) (100,000) -                     0% (120,000)

13 (22,869) (22,607)             (262)                  -1% Charity Care Provision (22,869) (22,607) (262)                  -1% (29,730)

14 974,238            313,272            660,966            * Prior Period Adj/Government Program Revenue 974,238              313,272              660,966            * 1,028,647             

15 (16,309,337)$  (17,539,328)$  1,229,991        -7% Total Deductions from Revenue (16,309,337)$     (17,539,328)$     1,229,991        -7% (16,314,871)$       

16 4,854,803$      4,617,548$      237,255            5% Net Patient Service Revenue 4,854,803$        4,617,548$        237,255            5% 5,044,274$           

17 133,404$          128,521$          4,883                4% Risk contract revenue 133,404$            128,521$            4,883                4% 127,594$              

18 4,988,207$      4,746,069$      242,138            5% Net Hospital Revenue 4,988,207$         4,746,069$         242,138            5% 5,171,868$           

19 10,971$            18,823$            (7,852)               -42% Other Op Rev & Electronic Health Records 10,971$              18,823$              (7,852)               -42% 19,337$                 

20 4,999,178$      4,764,892$      234,286            5% Total Operating Revenue 4,999,178$        4,764,892$        234,286 5% 5,191,205$           

Operating Expenses

21 2,294,823$      2,366,841$      72,018              3% Salary and Wages and Agency Fees 2,294,823$         2,366,841$         72,018              3% 2,235,401$           

22 918,812 890,361$          (28,451)             -3% Employee Benefits 918,812 890,361 (28,451)             -3% 879,134

23 3,213,635$      3,257,202$      43,567              1% Total People Cost 3,213,635$         3,257,202$         43,567              1% 3,114,535$           

24 370,653$          409,984$          39,331              10% Med and Prof Fees (excld Agency) 370,653$            409,984$            39,331              10% 390,273$              

25 550,625 503,955 (46,670)             -9% Supplies 550,625 503,955 (46,670)             -9% 512,982

26 355,742 376,471 20,729              6% Purchased Services 355,742 376,471 20,729              6% 287,091

27 285,332 282,312 (3,020)               -1% Depreciation 285,332 282,312 (3,020)               -1% 280,470

28 113,051 101,622 (11,429)             -11% Utilities 113,051 101,622 (11,429)             -11% 109,979

29 31,819 27,614 (4,205)               -15% Insurance 31,819 27,614 (4,205)               -15% 29,292

30 47,200 46,319 (881)                  -2% Interest 47,200 46,319 (881)                  -2% 34,224

31 114,591 138,950 24,359              18% Other 114,591 138,950 24,359              18% 154,471

32 509,543            86,433              (423,110)           * Matching Fees (Government Programs) 509,543 86,433                (423,110)           * 558,377

33 5,592,191$      5,230,862$      (361,329)          -7% Operating expenses 5,592,191$        5,230,862$        (361,329)          -7% 5,471,694$           

34 (593,013)$        (465,970)$        (127,043) -27% Operating Margin (593,013)$          (465,970)$          (127,043)          -27% (280,489)$             

Variance

Month

This Year Variance This Year

Year-To- Date

1
102



Page 2 of 2

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT D

Statement of Revenue and Expenses
Comparative Results

For the Period Ended July 31, 2017

YTD

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Prior Year

Variance

Month

This Year Variance This Year

Year-To- Date

Non Operating Rev and Expense

35 (5,211)$             (13,222)$           8,011                -61% Miscellaneous Revenue/(Expenses) (5,211)$               (13,222)$             8,011                * (12,866)$               

36 -                     -                     -                     0% Donations -                       -                       -                     0% 0

37 (56,766) (54,683) (2,083)               4% Physician Practice Support-Prima (56,766) (54,683) (2,083)               4% (37,500)

38 316,667 316,667 -                     0% Parcel Tax Assessment Rev 316,667 316,667 -                     0% 250,378

39 254,690$         248,762$         5,928                2% Total Non-Operating Rev/Exp 254,690$            248,762$            5,928                2% 200,012$              

40 (338,323)$        (217,208)$        (121,115)          56% Net Income / (Loss)  prior to Restricted Contributions (338,323)$          (217,208)$          (121,115)          56% (80,477)$               

41 -$                       14,417$            (14,417)             -100% Capital Campaign Contribution -$                         14,417$              (14,417)             -100% 10,417$                 

42 -$                       -$                       -                         0% Restricted Foundation Contributions -$                         -$                         -                     100% -$                            

43 (338,323)$        (202,791)$        (135,532)          67% Net Income / (Loss) w/ Restricted Contributions (338,323)$          (202,791)$          (135,532)          67% (70,060)$               

44 250,683 250,683 -                     0% GO Bond Tax Assessment Rev 250,683 250,683 -                     0% 246,909

45 (110,266) (110,266) -                     0% GO Bond Interest (110,266) (110,266) -                     0% (117,929)

46 (197,906)$        (62,374)$          (135,532)          217% Net Income/(Loss) w GO Bond Activity (197,906)$          (62,374)$            (135,532)          217% 58,920$                

(5,791)$             111,423$          EBIDA - Not including Restricted Contributions (5,791)$               111,423$            234,217$              

-0.1% 2.3% -0.1% 2.3% 4.5%

(52,991)$           65,104$            EBDA - Not including Restricted Contributions (52,991)$             65,104$              

-1.1% 1.4% -1.1% 1.4%

2
103



Page 1 of 2

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT E

Statement of Revenue and Expenses Variance Analysis
For the Period Ended July 31, 2017

YTD MONTH
Description Variance Variance
Volume Information

1 Acute Discharges (22)                   (22)                       

2 SNF Days (35)                   (35)                       

3 Home Care Visits (90)                   (90)                       

4 Gross O/P Revenue (000's) 774                  774                      

Financial Results
Gross Patient Revenue

5 Inpatient (1,691,016)      (1,691,016)         

Inpatient days were below budgeted expectations by (139) days and IP surgeries were below budget by (5) cases.  $534,094 is from IP implant charges, which offsets the costs of the 

implants.

6 Outpatient 662,451          662,451              

Outpatient visits are 4,327 vs. budgeted expectations of 4,812 visits and outpatient surgeries are 133 vs. budgeted expectations 90.  $189,228 is from OP implant charges, which 

offsets the costs of the implants.

7 Emergency 164,226          164,226              ER visits are 920 vs. budgeted visits of 940.

8 SNF (102,353)         (102,353)             SNF patient days are 528 vs. budgeted expected days of 563.

9 Home Care (26,044)           (26,044)               HHA visits are 870 vs. budgeted expectations of 960.

10 Total Gross Patient Revenue (992,736)         (992,736)            

Deductions from Revenue

11 Contractual Discounts 569,287          569,287              

12 Bad Debt -                   -                       

13 Charity Care Provision (262)                 (262)                     

14 Prior Period Adj/Government Program Revenue 660,966          660,966              Rate Range IGT $849,238 and Prime grant $125,000.

15 Total Deductions from Revenue 1,229,991       1,229,991          

16 Net Patient Service Revenue 237,255          237,255              

17 Risk contract revenue 4,883               4,883                   

18 Net Hospital Revenue 242,138          242,138              

19 Other Op Rev & Electronic Health Records (7,852)             (7,852)                 

20 Total Operating Revenue 234,286          234,286              

Operating Expenses

21 Salary and Wages and Agency Fees 72,018            72,018                Salaries and Wages are under budget by $92,985 and the Agency fees are over budget by ($20,967).

22 Employee Benefits (28,451)           (28,451)               Employee benefits are over budgeted expectations due to employee benefit costs ($18,714).

23 Total People Cost 43,567            43,567                

24 Med and Prof Fees (excld Agency) 39,331            39,331                

25 Supplies (46,670)           (46,670)               Supplies are over budget primarily in the surgery department due to surgical implants  ($102,083).

26 Purchased Services 20,729            20,729                

27 Depreciation (3,020)             (3,020)                 

28 Utilities (11,429)           (11,429)               

29 Insurance (4,205)             (4,205)                 

30 Interest (881)                 (881)                     

31 Other 24,359            24,359                

32 Matching Fees (Government Programs) (423,110)         (423,110)             The Rate Range IGT fee of $509,543 hit in July, when the budget is spread evenly for the year.

33 Operating expenses (361,329)         (361,329)            

34 Operating Margin (127,043)         (127,043)            

Non Operating Rev and Expense

35 Miscellaneous Revenue 8,011               8,011                   

36 Donations -                   -                       

37 Physician Practice Support-Prima (2,083)             (2,083)                 

38 Parcel Tax Assessment Rev -                   -                       

39 Total Non-Operating Rev/Exp 5,928              5,928                  

-                       

1

104



Page 2 of 2

Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT E

Statement of Revenue and Expenses Variance Analysis
For the Period Ended July 31, 2017

YTD MONTH
Description Variance Variance

40 Net Income / (Loss)  prior to Restricted Contributions (121,115)         (121,115)            

-                       

41 Capital Campaign Contribution (14,417)           (14,417)               

42 Restricted Foundation Contributions -                   -                       

43 Net Income / (Loss) w/ Restricted Contributions (135,532)         (135,532)            

44 GO Bond Tax Assessment Rev -                   -                       

45 GO Bond Interest -                   -                       

46 Net Income/(Loss) w GO Bond Activity (135,532)         (135,532)            

2

105



ATTACHMENT F

Days in A/R Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17 Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17 Jul'17

Actual days in A/R 49.7 45.7 44.2 46.9 44.5 45.3 44.8

Goal 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0

Days in A/P Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17 Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17 Jul'17
Actual days in 

Vendor A/P 43.1 38.9 36.4 38.2 45.2 45.8 42.1

Goal 60.0 60.0 60.0 55.0 55.0 55.0 55.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

50.0

55.0

60.0

65.0

70.0

Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17 Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17 Jul'17

D
ay

s

Days Revenue  in Net Accounts Receivable
FY 2017

Goal Actual Net Days

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17 Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17 Jul'17

D
ay

s

Days in Vendor Accounts Payable
FY 2017

Goal Actual days in Vendor A/P

106



Sonoma Valley Hospital ATTACHMENT G

Statistical  Analysis

FY 2018

ACTUAL BUDGET

Jul-17 Jul-17 Jun-17 May-17 Apr-17 Mar-17 Feb-17 Jan-17 Dec-16 Nov-16 Oct-16 Sep-16 Aug-16 Jul-16 Jun-16

Statistics

Acute

   Acute Patient Days 240 379 346 388 368 415 415 465 355 396 402 407 437 386 334

   Acute Discharges (w/o Newborns) 76 98 87 100 89 119 97 119 100 95 99 95 105 103 95

SNF Days 528 563 458 559 512 572 607 592 500 446 512 624 608 563 526

HHA Visits 870 960 940 966 934 849 922 877 919 938 880 1,042 890 960 942

Emergency Room Visits 920 940 964 1,069 921 941 851 1,000 942 850 852 897 918 940 907

Gross Outpatient Revenue   (000's) $14,175 $13,401 $15,454 $15,523 $13,168 $15,098 $12,189 $13,500 $12,935 $13,147 $13,347 $13,512 $13,336 $12,605 $13,465

Equivalent Patient Days 2,332 2,382 2,328 2,654 2,227 2,537 2,553 2,618 2,382 2,202 2,380 2,707 2,581 2,322 2,381

Births 6 15 15 7 11 12 12 11 9 8 9 14 17 14 14

Surgical Cases - Inpatient 29 34 36 30 47 40 26 38 28 38 42 37 39 43 31

Surgical Cases - Outpatient 133 90 161 143 124 149 101 110 98 123 84 81 85 73 93

Total Surgical Cases 162 124 197 173 171 189 127 148 126 161 126 118 124 116 124

Total Special Procedures 52 34 66 58 44 36 41 28 40 32 29 49 63 57 61

Medicare Case Mix Index 1.65 1.40 1.66 1.69 1.64 1.45 1.52 1.47 1.59 1.79 1.59 1.97 1.58 1.84 1.64

Income Statement

Net Revenue (000's) $4,988 $4,746 5,188 5,330 4,924 5,283 4,266 $4,528 $3,588 $4,452 $4,727 $4,406 $4,919 $5,172 $4,980

Operating Expenses (000's) $5,592 $5,231 $5,250 $5,678 $5,308 $5,395 $4,803 $5,026 $4,713 $5,047 $4,912 $4,807 $5,310 $5,472 $5,450

Net Income (000's) ($198) ($62) 690 16 -24 304 308 ($108) ($600) ($65) $337 ($6) ($23) $59 ($133)

Productivity

Total Operating Expense Per Equivalent Patient Day $2,398 $0 $2,255 $2,139 $2,383 $2,127 $1,881 $1,920 $1,979 $2,292 $2,064 $1,776 $2,057 $2,356 $2,289

Productive FTEs 271 283 278 291 285 294 294 280 253 289 280 283 286 278 287

Non-Productive FTE's 47 41 43 28 28 28 28 36 56 30 36 36 35 42 37

Total FTEs 318 324 321 319 313 322 322 316 309 319 316 319 321 320 324

FTEs per Adjusted Occupied Bed 4.23 4.22 4.14 3.73 4.22 3.93 3.54 3.74 4.03 4.35 4.11 3.54 3.86 4.28 4.08

Balance Sheet

Days of Expense In General Operating Cash 16.5 20 19 11 16 27 20 25 10 11 6 15 11 9

Net Days of Revenue in AR 45 50 45 44 47 44 46 50 51 53 50 50 50 55 57

ACTUAL

107



Sonoma Valley Hospital ATTACHMENT H
Cash Forecast
FY 2018

Actual Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun TOTAL

  Hospital Operating Sources
1 Patient Payments Collected 4,502,585           3,878,106           4,534,208           4,268,066           4,132,257            4,168,703              4,476,616           4,409,693                4,706,455           4,322,606           4,357,338           4,351,807                52,108,440                 
2 Capitation Revenue 133,404              128,521              128,521              128,521              128,521               128,521                 128,521              128,521                   128,521              128,521              128,521              128,518                   1,547,132                   
3 Napa State 39,561                20,762                20,762                20,762                20,762                 20,762                   20,762                20,762                     20,762                20,762                20,762                20,762                     267,943                      
4 Other Operating Revenue 10,971                18,823                18,823                18,823                18,823                 18,823                   18,823                18,823                     18,823                18,823                18,823                18,827                     218,028                      
5 Other Non-Operating Revenue 26,914                26,914                        
6 Unrestricted Contributions -                             
7 Line of Credit -                             

Sub-Total Hospital Sources 4,713,435           4,046,212           4,702,314           4,436,172           4,300,363            4,336,809              4,644,722           4,577,799                4,874,561           4,490,712           4,525,444           4,519,914                54,168,457                 

Hospital Uses of Cash
8 Operating Expenses 5,146,037           5,277,774           5,328,046           5,178,659           5,101,589            5,130,853              5,338,157           5,253,569                5,505,480           5,297,652           5,370,033           5,303,034                63,230,883                 
9     Less Depreciation (282,312)             (282,312)             (282,312)             (282,312)             (282,312)                (282,312)             (282,312)                  (282,312)             (282,312)             (282,312)             (282,301)                  (3,105,421)                 
10     Add Capital Lease Payments 52,503                100,057              100,464              100,872              101,283               166,323                 102,110              102,526                   102,944              103,364              103,786              169,180                   1,305,412                   
11 Additional Liabilities 200,000              200,000                      
12 Capital Expenditures 15,965                15,965                        

Total Hospital Uses 5,214,505           5,295,519           5,146,198           4,997,219           4,920,560            5,014,864              5,157,955           5,073,783                5,326,112           5,118,704           5,191,507           5,189,913                61,646,839                 

Net Hospital Sources/Uses of Cash (501,070)             (1,249,307)          (443,884)             (561,047)             (620,197)             (678,055)                (513,233)             (495,984)                  (451,551)             (627,992)             (666,063)             (669,999)                  (7,478,382)                 

Non-Hospital Sources
13 Restricted Cash/Capital Donations 509,543              14,417                (495,126)             14,417                 14,417                   18,828                18,828                     18,828                18,828                18,828                18,828                     170,636                      
14 Parcel Tax Revenue 152,275              2,000,000              1,800,000           3,952,275                   
15 Payment - South Lot (25,205)               (25,205)                  (24,658)               (24,932)                    (100,000)                    
16 Other: -                             
17      IGT 849,238              550,762               860,000              2,260,000                   
18      IGT - AB915 (Net) 900,000                   900,000                      
19      PRIME 1,350,000           150,000              1,500,000                   

Sub-Total Non-Hospital Sources 152,275              509,543              (10,788)               1,704,112           565,179               1,989,212              18,828                918,828                   854,170              1,818,828           168,828              (6,104)                      8,682,911                   

Non-Hospital Uses of Cash
20 Matching Fees 509,543              675,000              287,191              75,000                1,546,734                   

Sub-Total Non-Hospital Uses of Cash -                      509,543              675,000              287,191              -                      -                         -                      -                           -                      75,000                -                      -                           1,546,734                   

Net Non-Hospital Sources/Uses of Cash 152,275              -                      (685,788)             1,416,921           565,179               1,989,212              18,828                918,828                   854,170              1,743,828           168,828              (6,104)                      7,136,177                   

Net Sources/Uses (348,795)             (1,249,307)          (1,129,672)          855,874              (55,018)               1,311,157              (494,405)             422,844                   402,619              1,115,836           (497,235)             (676,103)                  

Cash and Equivalents at beginning of period 3,166,281           2,817,486           1,568,179           438,507              1,294,381            1,239,363              2,550,520           2,056,115                2,478,959           2,881,578           3,997,414           3,500,179                

Cash and Equivalents at end of period 2,817,486           1,568,179           438,507              1,294,381           1,239,363            2,550,520              2,056,115           2,478,959                2,881,578           3,997,414           3,500,179           2,824,076                

108



 

 
14. 

   ADMINISTRATIVE 
REPORT SEPTEMBER 

2017 

109



 

 

To:    SVHCD Board of Directors 

From:    Kelly Mather 

Date:    8/31/17 

Subject:    Administrative Report 

 

Summary 

We started the new fiscal year with a very low census and lower than expected volumes in the Skilled Nursing 

Facility, Home Care, and some Outpatient services. We are flexing off staff due to low volumes and have made a few 

more permanent expense reductions. We have also updated our organization chart to reduce the number of people 

with the “Chief” title. We trust the community has noticed the increased communications and responses to 

concerns since the parcel tax vote in June. 

 

Strategic Update from FY 2018 Strategic Plan: 

Strategic Priorities  Update 

Highest levels of 

health care safety, 

quality and value 

 We are attending a conference call about high reliable organizations. 

 We have selected three major organization wide performance improvement goals.  

Be the preferred 

hospital for patients, 

physicians, employers 

and health plans 

 Rate My Hospital has started and is a huge success! 

 3D Mammography construction has begun. 

 The Foundation has agreed to start the campaign for the Outpatient Diagnostic 

Center. 

 We are setting up meetings for physicians with new specialists. 

 Relay Health will be up in October and will provide more financial clarity and 

transparency for patients. 

 We are talking with Canopy Health and Kaiser about our value as a lower cost facility. 

Implement new and 

enhanced revenue 

strategies as 

measured by 

increased direct 

margins in each 

service unit 

 Bariatrics and Orthopedics are drawing patients from outside of the District. 

 Summit Pain Alliance is now seeing patients two full days in Sonoma, and they have a 

physiatrist. 

 The practice assessment is complete with a primary care group to possibly be a rural 

health center. 

 With the addition of an intake person and a physician, outside referrals are increasing 

in the SNF. 

 Cardiology Associates of Marin have a final interview for a new cardiology in Sonoma 

in October. 

 2 OB/GYN’s have said they are coming to Sonoma. 

Continue to improve 

financial stability as 

measured by 

operating margin 

 The Board is narrowing down the decision on the sale of the South Lot. 

 With the move of Mammography & Home Care back to the hospital, there will be 

$185k in savings. 

 We continue to work with Kaiser to improve the Home Care rates. 

Lead progress toward 

being a healthier 

community as 

measured by 

community benefit  

 The community health coaches are doing well. 

 Health education and outreach continue with the addition of “Conversations with a 

Doc” at the hospital. 

 We are increasing our outreach to the Latino population and learning how we can 

improve our perception. 

110



 

  

Prior 
Year/National 

Patient Experience  Current Performance  FY 2018 Goal  Benchmark 

Would Recommend Hospital  55th percentile > 60th percentile 50th percentile

Inpatient Overall Rating  56th percentile >60th percentile 50th percentile

Home Health   91% > 90%  > 80%

Outpatient Services  4.8 Rate My Hospital 4.5

Emergency  4.6 Rate My Hospital 4.5

Quality & Safety  YTD Performance  FY 2018 Goal  Benchmark 

Hospital Acquired Infections  5 of 6 <benchmark 5 of 6 <benchmark 6 of 6 <benchmark

30 Day All‐Cause Readmissions  9.40% < 10 % < 18.5%

Serious Safety Events  0 0 0

Overall Surgical Site Infection Rate  0.43% 0.50% n/a

Hand Hygiene  98% >90% >80%

Falls  2.1 < 2.3 2.3

Pressure Ulcers  3.3 <3.7 3.7

Injuries to Staff  9 < 10 17

Adverse Drug Events with Harm  0 0 0

C Section rate  10.80% <20% < 20%

Wound Care Time to Heal  22 days < 30 days < 31 days

Repeat Analysis in Radiology  3.25% < 5% < 5%

Reportable HIPAA Privacy Events  0 0 0

SNF Star Rating  4 4 3

Hospital Star Rating  3 4 3

Our People  YTD Performance  FY 2018 Goal  Benchmark 

Press Ganey Engagement Survey  74th percentile 75th percentile 50th percentile

Wellness Ambassadors  232 250 > 200

Turnover  0.60% < 10% < 15%

Financial Stability  YTD Performance  FY 2018 Goal  Benchmark 

EBDA  ‐0.10% 2.89% 3%

FTE's/AOB  4.23 4.3 5.3

Days Cash on Hand  16.5 20 30

Days in Accounts Receivable  45 49 50

Length of Stay  3.2 3.85 4.03

Cost per Medicare Beneficiary  $18,430  <$20,000 $20,473 

Funds raised by SVHF  $1,476,937  $4,483,950  $1 million

Strategic Growth  YTD Performance  FY 2018 Goal  Benchmark 

Inpatient Discharges  76 1193 1225

Outpatient Units of Service  14,736 180,286 180,697

Emergency Visits  920 11,022 11,000

Surgeries  162 1,800 1,680

Births  6 132 120

Home Health Visits  870 11,053 11,400

Community Benefit Hours  186 1200 1200
 

111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEASUREMENT 
Goal 

FY 2018 
Jul 

2017 

Aug 

2016 

Sep 

2016 

Oct 

2016 

Nov 

2016 

Dec 

2016 

Jan 

2017 

Feb 

2017 

Mar 

2017 

Apr 

2017 

May

2017 

Jun 

2017 

Inpatient Satisfaction  6/10  5  0  1  2  3   3  2  3  2  6  5  5 

FY YTD Turnover  <10%  .9  1.5  1.8  3.6  4.2  4.8  5.6  6.3  7.2  7.7  8.4     9 

Leaves of Absence  <12  20                       

YTD EBIDA  >3%  .1  3.8  4.2  5.2  4.4  1.5  2.2  2  3  3  3.1  3.6 

Operating Revenue  >5m  5.0  5.0  4.5  4.7  4.5  3.7  4.5  4.3  5.3  4.9  5.3  5.2 

Expense Management  <5m  5.1  5.1  4.8  4.9  5.0  4.7  5.0  4.8  5.4  5.3  5.6  5.2 

Net Income  >50k  ‐197  ‐23  94  336  ‐270  ‐599  ‐107  307  304  ‐24  16 180 

Days Cash on Hand  >20  16  15  6  11  10  25  20  27  16  11  19  20 

A/R Days  <50  45  50  50  50  53  51  50  46  44  47  44  45 

Total FTE’s  <315  318  321  319  316  319  309  316  322  322  313  319  321 

FTEs/AOB  <4.0  4.23  3.86  3.54  4.11  4.35  4.03  3.74  3.54  3.93  4.22  3.73   4.14 

Inpatient Discharges  >90  76  105  95  99  95  100  119  97  119  89  100  87 

Outpatient Revenue  >$13m  14.1  13.3  13.5  13.3  13.1  12.9  13.5  12.2  15.1  13.1  15.5  15.4 

Surgeries  >150  162  124  118  126  161  126  148  127  189  171  173  197 

Home Health  >950  870  890  1042  880  938  919  877  922  849  934  966  940 

Births  >11  6  17  14  9  8  9  11  12  12  11  7  15 

SNF days  >550  528  608  624  512  446  500  592  607  572  512  559  458 

MRI  >120  102  97  104  140    118  130  115  107  137  121  116  109 

Cardiology (Echos)  >50  62  53  66  60  51  51  55  69  89  70  70  79 

Laboratory  >12  11.9  12.2  11.4  12.6  12.1  12.0  12.5  11.5  13.9  12.1  13.6  11.8 

Radiology  >850  881  944  1001  898  870  934 1012 981  1159    963  1142 1137

Rehab  >2700  2362  3008  3136  2575  2286 2117 2530 2161  3020  2748  2983 2802

CT  >300  326  327  412  367  306  340  341  323  398  385  407  376 

ER  >900  920  918  897  852  850  942  1000 851  941  921  1069 964 

Mammography  >200  223  475  421  434  435  399  171  215  246  191  214  219 

Ultrasound  >300  287  310  288  288  290  271  253  284  334  213  279  312 

Occupational Health  >600  642  724  741  797  636  601  484  568  611  631  607  659 

Wound Care  >200  226  312  253  226  199  225  228  238  348  239  203  307 

ROLLING 12 MONTH RESULTS

112



 

 
15. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 Governance Committee 

Travel & Reimbursement Policy 
Changes 
SVH Affiliation Agreements 

 CEO Objectives for FY2018 

113



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:   September 7, 2017   

Prepared by:    Peter Hohorst 

Agenda Item Title:   Travel and Reimbursement Policy 

Recommendations: 
That the Board approve the proposed changes to the maximum allowable allowances in the 
Travel and Reimbursement Policy 
 
Background: 
The Travel and Reimbursement Policy was approved by the Board in August 2012. It stipulates 
the maximum allowable expenses for meals and incidentals that may be claimed by Board 
member for out of town travel of 24 hours or more on District activities. The amount stipulated 
for a dinner is $38. 
The attached change to item 7 on page 5 of the Policy reflects the recent experience of Board 
members who attended an American Hospital Association Conference in San Diego in July. The 
conference was held in a downtown hotel. On two nights during the conference the Board 
members and the District CEO had dinner together at a local restaurant (dinners were not 
provided as part of the scheduled conference activities.) 
Due to its location in the San Diego business district the cost of dinner at the Hotel or in nearby 
restaurants significantly exceeded the maximum allowable meal allowance stipulated in the 
present Travel and Reimbursement Policy. In keeping with the Policy the Board members (who 
are unpaid) covered the extra expense out of their own pocket. 
The proposed increase in the maximum allowable meal expense will reduce the amount that 
Board members will be require to pay out of their own pocket at future medical conferences.  
 
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
Board members may decide not to attend valuable conferences   
 
Financial Impact: 
Maximum cost of the change would be $470 per conference. 
 
Attachment: 
Proposed change to page 5, item 7 of the Travel and Reimbursement Policy. 

114



Recommended change to Page 5, paragraph 7 of the Travel & Reimbursement Policy 

7. Out‐Of‐Town Meals and Incidentals  

For travel of 24 hours the meal expense reimbursement rate may not exceed $70/ $125/ day.  

Incidentals are $5 /day.  While traveling, if one or more meals is provided as part of a meeting, training 

session or conference, the Board member shall deduct the allowable per diem cost of that meal from 

the per diem for that day, using the schedule provided below. This schedule also applies to the day of 

departure and the day of return. In any instance where a meal is provided by others the meal allowance 

value shall not be claimed by the Board member.    

Meals and Incidentals – Maximum allowances for meals and incidentals  

• Breakfast ‐‐ $13 (when travel begins before 7 AM)  

• Lunch – $19 (when travel begins before 11 AM and/or ends after 1 PM)  

• Dinner ‐‐$38 $85 (when travel ends after 6:30 PM)  

• Incidentals ‐‐ $5 $8 (for partial or full day travel)   

• Total ‐‐$75  $125 

For travel of less than 24 hours, the schedule limits the meal allowances payable to the Board member 

with receipts. (Government Code section 53232.2(c). Incidentals are intended to include miscellaneous 

costs associated with travel such as tips for baggage handling, etc. and do not require receipts. 

In the event that the District CEO and President attends the same event attended by a Board member, 

these maximum allowances shall also apply to the District CEO and President.  

If a receipt for a meal includes the expense for several Board members (and/or the District CEO,) the 

total amount of the receipt may be reported on one person’s expense report with a notation of the 

names of the other members who were included on the receipt. 

115



 
 

Meeting Date: 9/7/17 Board Meeting 

Prepared by: Peter Hohorst & Joshua Rymer, Board Members 

Agenda Item Title: CEO Objectives FY 2018 

Recommendation: 
That the Board approve the proposed CEO Objectives for FY 2018 

Background and Reasoning: 
It is a recognized good management practice to establish objectives for key 
management personnel as a means to motivate, measure, and reward performance. 

Objectives are most effective when they are: 

 Of significant importance to the organization; 
 Established jointly by the manager and his/her direct supervisor; 
 Measurable by objective metrics; and, 
 Achievable as viewed by both the manager and the supervisor. 

 
The objectives that follow meet these criteria. Each objective will have three benchmark 
goals: 

 A base goal that will generate a performance incentive, if achieved, of 66.7% of 
the maximum possible performance incentive for the objective;  

 An intermediate target that will generate a performance incentive of 86.7% of the 
maximum possible performance incentive for the objective; and,  

 A stretch goal that will generate a performance incentive of 100% of the 
maximum for the objective.  

 
Performance at levels below the base goals for each objective will generate zero 
performance incentive contribution. 

1. High In-Patient Satisfaction 
We recommend using the HCAHPS scores to measure in-patient service excellence.  
HCAHPS are the Hospital’s rating for patient satisfaction as measured by CMS and an 
important indication of the quality of customer service.  The maximum possible 
performance incentive for this objective would be 3% of annual salary.  The three-
benchmark goals would be: 

116



 

 

CEO Objectives FY 2018 

 

   
2

 Base goal - achieve an average of 6 out of 10 HCAHPS above the 60th percentile 
for In-Patient satisfaction for the fiscal year; 

 Intermediate goal – achieve an average of 6 out of 10 HCAHPS above the 65th 
percentile for In-Patient satisfaction for the fiscal year; and, 

 Stretch goal – achieve an average of 6 out of 10 HCAHPS above the 70th 
percentile for In-Patient satisfaction for the fiscal year for the stretch.  

 
Note:  We recommend changing this goal two ways compared to FY 2017.  First, we 
recommend using an average of measure as opposed to an ‘X in 12 months’ metric.  
This approach has the advantage of being consistent with the published hospital goals 
(for both last year and this year) while being more stable and easier to understand 
during the year.  Second, we recommend lowering the base goal percentile rank from 
70th to the 60th percentile.  This also reflects consistency with the broader hospital goals 
and is closer to the levels achieved in FY 2017. 
 
2. High Outpatient Satisfaction 
We recommend using ‘Rate My Hospital’ scores to measure Outpatient service 
excellence. The maximum possible performance incentive for this objective would be 
1.5% of annual salary.  The three-benchmark goals would be: 

 Base goal – achieve a Rate My Hospital average score of 4.5 or higher for all 
combined departments; 

 Intermediate goal - achieve a Rate My Hospital average score of 4.7 or higher for 
all combined departments; and, 

 Stretch goal - achieve a Rate My Hospital average score of 4.8 or higher for all 
combined departments for the stretch. 

 
Note:  We recommend replacing previously used Emergency Department HCAHPS 
(EDHCAHPS) scores with Rate My Hospital scores because CMS has stopped using 
EDHCAHPS and they also reflect a broader set of services than the EDHCAHPS.  The 
Rate My Hospital scores are also available quicker than the EDHCAHPS scores 
enabling faster response and corrections of any issues that arise. This will be the first 
year that Rate My Hospital scores will be used for Sonoma Valley Hospital, and there is 
no historical benchmark against which to set the goals.  However, Rate My Hospital has 
informed us that scores above 4.0 are considered good, the maximum score is 5.0.  
Average scores for Sonoma Valley Hospital for the first few months of use have been 
~4.8.   
 
3. Excellent Patient Outcomes 
For 2018, we recommend using a re-admissions goal to measure Excellent Patient 

117



 

 

CEO Objectives FY 2018 

 

   
3

Outcomes. The maximum possible performance incentive for this objective would be 
3% of annual salary.  The three-benchmark goals would be: 

 Base goal – to achieve a re-admission rate of <10% for the year; 
 Intermediate goal - achieve a re-admission rate of <9% for the year; and, 
 Stretch goal – achieve a re-admission rate of <8% for the year. 

 
Note:  We are recommending replacing previously used Value Based Purchasing (VBP) 
scores as CMS has dramatically scaled back the breadth of what VPB covers and 
provides fewer incentives to reach those scores.  Readmission rate is recommended to 
replace VPB because it is a widely recognized metric for quality of care, comes with a 
significant CMS incentive to achieve, and, Medicare patients readmitted to the hospital 
within 30 days of discharge for any reason must be treated free. The hospital has 
significant history to aid in setting appropriate targets.  The 10% readmission rate goal 
is consistent with this past year’s experience and is significantly below the national rate, 
which is closer to 20%. 
  
4. Highly Engaged and Satisfied Staff 
We recommend using the Press Ganey Percentile ranking of current mean score to 
measure the engagement and satisfaction of staff. The maximum possible performance 
incentive for this objective would be 1.5% of annual salary.  The three-benchmark goals 
would be: 

 Base goal - achieve a Press Ganey Percentile ranking of >75th percentile on an 
annual basis; 

 Intermediate goal - achieve a Press Ganey Percentile ranking of >78th percentile 
on an annual basis; and, 

 Stretch goal – achieve a Press Ganey Percentile ranking of >80th percentile on 
an annual basis. 

 
With the current tight operating budget and the demands of a changing health care 
environment, high staff satisfaction levels are extremely difficult.  The recommended 
base level is just slightly higher than the level achieved in 2017, but lower than the goal 
for last year. 

5. Financial Viability  
We recommend using Earnings, Before Interest, Depreciation and Amortization (EBIDA) 
before restricted donations and GO Bond income and expense to measure Financial 
Viability. The maximum possible performance incentive for this objective would be 9.5% 
of annual salary. The three-benchmark goals would be: 

 Base goal - achieve the budgeted goal of 3.8% ($2.2 million) for Earnings, Before 

118



 

 

CEO Objectives FY 2018 

 

   
4

Interest, Depreciation and Amortization (EBIDA) before restricted donations and 
GO Bond income and expense; 

 Intermediate goal - achieve 1% above the budgeted goal for Earnings, Before 
Interest, Depreciation and Amortization (EBIDA) before restricted donations and 
GO Bond income and expense (EBIDA = 4.8% or $2.8 million); and, 

 Stretch goal – achieve 2% above the budgeted goal for Earnings, Before Interest, 
Depreciation and Amortization (EBIDA) before restricted donations and GO Bond 
income and expense (EBIDA = 5.8% or $3.4 million). 

 
Note: The recommended Financial Viability goals for FY 2018 are higher (~$300K) than 
the goals set for FY 2017 and also higher than the EBIDA achieved in FY 2017 by 
~$200K. These higher goals reflect the impact of higher surgeries and rigorous cost 
containment in the context of continuous downward pressure on reimbursement from 
insurers and government payers and significant upward pressure on expenses from 
increases in wages and other contract expenses. 

6. Healthy Community  
The last objective is to support the improved health of our community and to enhance 
the reputation of the Hospital through employee outreach efforts.  We recommend using 
Community Service Hours of Employees to measure efforts toward a Healthy 
Community. The maximum possible performance incentive for this objective would be 
1.5% of annual salary. The three-benchmark goals would be: 

 Base goal – contribute 1200 total hours during FY 2018; 
 Intermediate goal - contribute 1350 total hours during FY 2018; and, 
 Stretch goal – contribute >1500 total hours during FY 2018. 

 
Note: While we believe that the level of community service is an important contribution 
that the hospital makes to a healthy community, we recommend setting these goals 
slightly lower (300 hours) than were set, and almost achieved, for 2017 as the 
administration and staff identify ways to have a larger impact with fewer resources 
expended. 
  
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
Without clearly defined objectives it is not possible to objectively evaluate CEO 
performance.  

Without clearly defined objectives the opportunity to motivate and reward outstanding 
performance is lost. 

Financial Impact: 
Achievement of the financial objective would rank FY 2018’s performance above FY 

119



 

 

CEO Objectives FY 2018 

 

   
5

2017 performance and among the best in the recent history of the Hospital. 

Selection Process and Contract History 
The present CEO contract, which runs through 2018, includes a provision for a 
maximum performance incentive payment of 20%.  Because of the importance of 
financial stability, 45% of the performance incentive opportunity has been allocated to 
the financial objective as it was in FY 2015, 2016 and 2017. 

Attachments:  
FY 2018 CEO Goal Summary 

120



1 

      FY 2018 CEO GOALS 
 Levels 1 & 2:  0 Salary Incentive Compensation
Level 3: 66.7% Salary Incentive Compensation
Level 4: 86.7% Salary Incentive Compensation
Level 5: 100%  Salary Incentive Compensation

 

PERFORMANCE 
GOAL  

OBJECTIVE  METRIC  ACTUAL 
RESULT 

FY 2018 
GOAL LEVEL  

Service Excellence 
3.0% of annual 

salary 

High In-Patient 
Satisfaction  

6 out of 10 HCAHPS 
questions above 60th 
percentile average 

for the year 

 >70th = 5 
> 65th = 4  
> 60th = 3  
< 60th = 2  
< 50th = 1 

Service Excellence 
1.5% of annual 

salary 

High Outpatient 
Department 
Satisfaction 

4.5 score in Rate My 
Hospital or higher for 

all Outpatient 
departments 

measured per year 

 >4.8 =5 
 >4.7=4 
 >4.5= 3 
 <4.5 = 2  
< 4.4 = 1 

Quality 
3.0% of annual 

salary 

Excellent Patient 
Outcomes  

Maintain all cause 
Re-admission rate 
below 10% for the 

year 

 < 8% = 5  
< 9% =4  
< 10%  =3  
> 10% = 2  
> 11% = 1 

People 
1.5% of annual 

salary 

Highly Engaged 
and Satisfied Staff 

Press Ganey 
percentile ranking of 
current mean score 

for the year  

 >80th = 5  
>78th=4  
>75h=3  
<75th=2  
<70th =1  

Finance 
9.5% of annual salary 

 

Financial Viability  
 

 

 

 
 

Achieve Earnings, 
Before Interest, 
Depreciation and 
Amortization (EBIDA) 
before restricted 
donations and GO 
Bond income & 
expense at year end 

 > $2,8 million = 5  
> $2.5 million = 4 
> $2.2 million = 3  
< $2.2 million = 2 
< $1.9 million = 1 

Healthy Community  
1.5% of annual 

salary 

 

Community 
Hours 

Numbers of hours for 
community benefit 

per year 

 >1500 hours = 5 
> 1350 hours = 4 
>1200 hours = 3 
< 1200 = 2 
< 1000 hours = 1 

     

 

121



Overview of Sonoma Valley District Affiliations 

Prima Medical Foundation 

The Prima Medical Foundation is a separate, non-profit, physician corporation that 
employs physicians through Professional Services Agreements. The Group has a 
1206(L) Foundation Structure and employs over 40 physicians, with 10 different 
specialties in Marin and Sonoma Counties. The Sonoma Prima office is part of the 
Prima Medical Foundation. 

The major reason for the Sonoma Prima office and the participation of the Sonoma 
Valley Hospital (SVH) in the Prima Medical Foundation has been to provide a cost 
effective means to recruit and retain physicians in Sonoma. SVH has a funding 
agreement with the Prima Medical Foundation to support the Sonoma office. Physicians 
are paid based on worked RVU’s.  Currently the Sonoma Prima office employs an 
Orthopedic Surgeon, a General/Bariatric Surgeon, 3 Primary Care Physicians, and a 
Pediatrician.  

The Prima Medical Foundation Board has accountability and oversight and the general 
member is Marin General Hospital (MGH.)  The Sonoma Valley District CEO meets 
monthly with the Prima Sonoma physician leader to systematically review the monthly 
financials and physician practices. 

1206(B) Physician Clinic 

The Sonoma Valley District in 2016 formed a 1206(B) Physician Clinic to provide 
another option for the recruitment and retention of physicians in Sonoma. Currently this 
Clinic employs one General/Colorectal surgeon who operates out of the Hospital’s time 
share space on Napa Street 

Meritage Medical Network 

Meritage Medical Network (MMN) is a network of 700 primary care and specialist 
physicians in Marin, Sonoma, and Napa Counties.  Sonoma Valley Hospital participates 
with MMN and Marin General Hospital to provide a Western Health Advantage HMO 
product in the Sonoma Valley.  

Sonoma Valley Hospital also participates with MMN and Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital 
to provide the SCAN Medicare Advantage HMO product in the Sonoma Valley. 

MMN (originally known as Marin IPA) was formed in 1981 to organize the physicians of 
Marin County, California into an Individual Practice Association (IPA) that could accept 
HMO insurance risk contracts. Currently MMN has relationships with eight hospitals in 
its service area, including Sonoma Valley Hospital.  

Northern California Health Care Authority 

122



The Northern California Health Care Authority is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) formed 
in 2009 to create a “regional” entity to pool Health Care District resources for greater 
efficiency, to present a larger client base for physicians, and to negotiate better 
reimbursement rates from insurers.  

The five health care districts that are members of the Authority are: 

 Palm Drive Healthcare District 
 North Sonoma County Health Care District 
 Sonoma Valley Healthcare District 
 Mendocino Coast Healthcare District 
 Southern Humboldt Community Healthcare District 
    

123



 

 
16. 

BOARD COMMENTS 
 SVH Oppose Letter for AB1250 

124



125



126



127



128


	AGENDA 09.07.17
	6
	6 Consent Calendar
	BOARD MINUTES 08.03.17
	GC Minutes 08.22.17
	QC MINUTES 07.26.17
	Policy & Procedures

	8
	8 Res. 335 Adoption and Implementation of Design Build for the Out Patient Diagnostic Center
	8 Res. 335 RFQ Board Letter 9-7-18
	8 Res.335 Adoption & Implementation of Design Build Construction Process for the Outpt Diagnostic Center
	8 Design Build VA Presentation

	9
	9 Business Developement, Marketing & Community Relations
	10
	10 Res 336 Setting the Go Bond Tax Rate 2017-2018
	Board cover memo SETTING GO BOND TAX
	Res.336 Setting GO Bond Tax Rate 2017-18

	11
	11 Res 337 Issuance of Bonds to Refund the Outstanding General Obligations
	Res 337 Board Letter
	Res. 337 Issuance of Bonds to refund the outstanding general obligation bonds

	12
	12 Res 338 Authorizing the Issuance of a Tax & Revenue Anticipation Note
	Res. 338  Board Letter
	Resolution 338
	Resolution 338 Note 9.2017
	Res.338 County Authorization Page

	13
	13 Financials Month End July 31, 2017
	Narrative - 7-31-17
	#1 Percentages for Narrative
	#2 Indicators
	#3 Balance Sheet
	#4 Income Statement
	#5 Variance Analysis
	#6 Graph
	#7 Stats
	#8. Cash Forecast

	14
	14 Administrative Report Sept 2017
	15
	15 a Travel and Reimbursement Policy Changes
	BOARD LETTER Travel and Reimbursement Policy
	Change to the Travel and Reimbursement Policy 8-28-17

	15 b CEO Objectives FY2018
	Board Letter format CEO Objectives FY2018
	FY 2018 CEO INCENTIVE COMPENSATION GOALS

	15 c Sonoma Valley Hospital Affiliation Agreements
	16
	16 SVH Oppose Letters Regarding AB1250 (2)



